L
IL.
Convention
Arena IIl.
Authority
Steven Heacock,
Chairman
Birgit Klohs
Clit Charles
Gary Mclnerney
George Heartwell
Joseph Tomaselli
Lew Chamberlin
Iv.
V.
VL
VIIL
g VIIL
ety
|
t
VAN ANDEL IX'
ARENA
[EIEETT X.

Van Andel Arenas®
130 Fulton West

Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2601

616.742.6600
Fax 616.742.6197

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

COI:IVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

NTERTAINMENT, CONVENTION. SHOW & SPORITS FACILITIES

Board of Directors

Wednesday, June 25, 2008
8:00 a.m. — 9:30 a.m.
Kent County Commission Chambers
300 Monroe Avenue, NW — Grand Rapids, MI

AGENDA
Call to Order
Approval of May 28, 2008, Minutes Action
Committee Reports
a. Operations Committee
i. Operations Committee Report
e Application for Special Liquor License Action
e Update on DeVos Place® Artwork Applications Information
ii. CVB Report Information
b. Finance Committee
i. SMG May 2008 Financial Statements Action
DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®
ii. CAA May 2008 Financial Statements Action
ii. FY 2009 SMG Facility Operating Budgets Action
iv. FY 2009 CAA Administrative Budget Action
V. FY 2008 Budget Amendment Action
Vi. Investment Policy Recommendation Action
DeVos Place® Five-Year Rate Sheets Action
DeVos Place® Parking Facility — City Auto Parking Action
Services Contract
201 Monroe, NW Easement Update Information
SMG Report and Facilities Calendars Information

Public Comment

Next Meeting Date: Wednesday, August 27, 2008. July meeting cancelled.

Adjournment | )

DeVos Pla
303 Monroe Ave. NW
Grand Rapids, M| 49503-2
616.742.
Fax 616.74




Item I1

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

Call to Order

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Wednesday, May 28, 2008

Chair Steve Heacock called the meeting to order at 8:05 a.m. Chair Heacock presided and Susan
Waddell recorded the meeting minutes in the absence of Treasurer/Secretary Birgit Klohs.

Attendance

Members Present:

Steve Heacock, Chair

Lew Chamberlin

George Heartwell
Gary Mclnerney
Members Absent: Clif Charles
Birgit Klohs
Joseph Tomaselli
Staff/Others: David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Jim Day Kent County
Daryl Delabbio Kent County
Brian Dykema Interested Citizen
George Helmstead CVB
Kurt Kimball City of Grand Rapids
Chris Knape The Grand Rapids Press
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Robert Mihos Kent County
Eddie Tadlock SMG
Susan Waddell CAA
Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright
Robert White Kent County

Minutes of Prior Meeting

Motion: Mr. McInerney, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the Minutes of the April 23,
2008, meeting of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority. Motion carried
unanimously.

IV. Committee Reports

a. Operations Committee

Mr. Chamberlin stated that the Operations Committee did not meet in May. Next month the Committee
will be reviewing the capital items in the proposed 2009 budget, in particular, the Arena concourse
expansion project.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
May 28, 2008 — 2

Mr. Helmstead presented a report on recent sales activities and major bid presentations. A group of
minority and religious meeting planners will be in town this weekend and will be attending the Bill
Gaither concert. The CVB is preparing for the June arrival of the RCMA Board in preparation for the
January 2009 convention. The Society of Plastic Engineers has given a verbal confirmation for its
convention in the year 2010. Next week, the CVB will be submitting a bid for the National Association
of Assessing Officers’ convention.

b. Finance Committee.
i SMG Financial Statements for DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®

Motion: Mr. Heartwell, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements
Jor DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® for the period ended April 30, 2008. After review and
discussion, the motion was unanimously adopted.

il. CAA Financial Statements

Motion: Mr. Mclnerney, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the CAA Financial Statements
Jor the period ended April 30, 2008. After review and discussion, the motion was unanimously adopted.

iii. Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared for both six-month periods ended December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively, and included the operations of DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®, as well as
the administrative operations of the CAA. Chair Heacock stated that the statements illustrate the cash
flow as a united entity.

iv. Proposed Fiscal Year 2009 SMG Facility Operating Budgets

Mr. Machuta stated that 2009 is potentially a “perfect storm,” as the lead income statement for DeVos
Place® shows the potential for strong direct event and ancillary income. Although the number of event
days at DeVos Place® will decrease, larger events will be replacing multiple smaller events and there will
be an increase in attendance overall. The event breakout indicates that there will be an increase in _
conventions and tradeshows, although the Woodworking event will not occur. There will be an increase
in consumer shows with the addition of the wine and food festival and an RV show. Total indirect
expenses will increase due to the addition of a sales director and an IT professional, green initiatives,
repairs/maintenance, supplies, and advertising. Utility expenses are not expected to increase.

The Arena is expected to post a net income of $1.4 million, which is consistent with past years. Ancillary
income is projected to increase, along with income from luxury seating. The total number of sporting
events will be down, although the NCAA hockey tournament returns. The budget predicts 23 concerts,
which appears to be the magic number year after year. There will be a strong increase in family shows
with the addition of a motocross event and the Rockettes. Indirect expenses will remain fairly consistent
with fiscal year 2008. Utility expenses will decrease due to re-lamping and professional fees will increase
due to the inclusion of a green audit.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
May 28, 2008 - 3

V. Proposed Fiscal Year 2009 CAA Administrative Budget

Mr. White referred to Table A, which provides a summary of the SMG budget documents. This summary
notes an original budgeted net operating income for Fiscal Year 2008 of $541,329, with a current year
forecast of $613,077. The Fiscal Year 2009 budged net operating income is $693,937. SMG forecasts
current year spending in excess of previously authorized budget for the Van Andel Arena®. A budget
amendment will be presented to the Board at the June meeting. Table C provides a consolidated income
statement for fiscal years ending June 30, 2007-2009. The Fiscal Year 2009 budget forecasts an operating
income totaling $808,662. The Fiscal Year 2008 budget, as originally approved, forecasted net income of
$820,537. This forecasted income has been revised to a total adjusted balance, for the current fiscal year,
of approximately $1,447,430. The income forecast was increased by higher than expected event revenue
at the Van Andel Arena®. Revenue forecasts and appropriation requests for the Fiscal Year 2009 budget
disclose a net loss of ($213,438). This net loss is a significant reduction from prior year performance,
primarily based on an increase in new capital spending. SMG will take over parking maintenance in the
DeVos Place® parking ramp, and there is a $25,000 appropriation for this expense. There is a new line
item of $120,000 for landscaping at DeVos Place®. The Arena will continue to receive $80,000 in non-
operating revenue from the Rampage which, according to the lease agreement, states that the tenant
agrees to fund during renewal terms a contribution of $10,000 per home game to the Arena’s capital
reserve fund. Capital repair/replacement/improvement projects will total approximately $1.5 million for
both buildings, plus the carryover of two projects from fiscal year 2008. The most costly projects include
the northwest concourse expansion and upper bowl curtain system at the Arena and the snow melt system
and theater fire curtain at DeVos Place®.

V. SMG Report and Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan presented a summary of the upcoming events that will be held at DeVos Place® and the
Van Andel Arena®.

VI.  Public Comment

None.

VII. Next Meeting Date

The date for next CAA Board meeting is Wednesday, June 25, 2008.

VIII. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 9:00 a.m.

Susan M. Waddell, Recording Secretary



Convention
Arena

Authority

Steven Heacock,
Chairman

Birgit Klohs

Clif Charles

Gary Mclnerney

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli

Lew Chamberlin

VAN ANDEL
ARENA

Van Andel Arena®

130 Fulton West

Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2601
616.742.6600

Fax 616.742.6197

Item IIl.a.i.

B i o L
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. CONVENTION, SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

Memorandum
To: CAA Board Members
From: Rich MacKeigan, Executive Director
Date: June 19, 2008
Re: Application to Liquor Control Commission for Special License

As we move forward with planning the operational aspects of the upcoming International
Wine & Food Festival, the CAA may want apply to the Michigan Liquor Control
Commission for a Special (24-Hour) On-Premise License. This license allows nonprofit,
religious, fraternal, civic, or patriotic organizations to obtain a one-day license to sell
alcoholic beverages (beer, wine, and liquor) to the public for on-premise consumption.

Specific requirements for the Special On-Premise License include:

1. Profits from the sale of alcoholic beverages must go to the organization and
not to any individual.

2. The chief local law enforcement officer in the governmental unit must
approve the request where the event is to be held.

3. No more than 5 licenses are issued to individual organizations each
calendar year.

4. Proof of nonprofit status must be provided with the application unless the
applicant is a national organization or has obtained previous special
licenses.

The license fee is $25.00 for each separate, consecutive day of the event. If the event is
held on a Sunday, an additional $3.75 Sunday Sales fee is required — only if spirits are
sold. I am recommending we apply for this license as the cost is minimal, to allow for
greater flexibility on the operational side.

Action requested: Approval to submit an application to the Michigan Liquor Control
Commission for a Special On-Premise License.

SPLACE

DeVos Place=

303 Monroe Ave. NW

Grand Rapids, M| 49503-2
7

233
616.742.6500
Fax 616.742.6590




Item IILDb.i.

DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MAY 31, 2008

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2008

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE

SALES

OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

INCENTIVE FEE

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER

OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

May proved to be a very successful month for DeVos Place as ancillary spending

TOTAL BUDGET

YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
563 16 579 647 (68)
630,072 17,180 647,252 723,350 (76,098)
2,524,257 60,978 2,585,235 2,541,693 43,542
2,049,814 32,847 2,082,661 2,060,745 21,916
4,574,071 93,825 4,667,896 4,602,438 65,458
166,237 9,165 175,402 229,000 (53,598)
4,740,308 102,990 4,843,298 4,831,438 11,860
130,794 10,388 141,182 166,596 25414
192,943 28,161 221,104 208,548 (12,556)
54,234 29,400 83,634 104,657 21,023
1,254,440 165,457 1,419,897 1,385,380 (34,517)
911,901 53,677 965,578 944,447 (21,131)
65,167 2,003 67,170 77,626 10,456
187,478 21,123 208,601 248,723 40,122
2,110,678 165,955 2,276,633 2,217,749 (58,884)
4,907,636 476,164 5,383,799 5,353,726 (30,073)
(167,328) (373,174) (540,501) (522,288) (18,213)

153,300 153,300 153,300 -
(167,328) (526,474) (693,801) (675,588) (18,213)

came in significantly higher than both budget and forecast. This has closed
some of the shortfall that was anticipated for the fiscal year, and if June events
end up continuing the trend shown in May, there is a good chance that DeVos

Place will end the fiscal year very comparable to budget.




DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED MAY 31, 2008

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending May 31, 2008
and the YTD ending June 30, 2008, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH

Number of Events
Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income
Other Income
Indirect Expenses
Net Income

YTD

Number of Events
Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income
Other Income
Indirect Expenses
Net Income

EVENT INCOME

May May May
Actual Budget FY 2007
61 53 59
66,395 56,900 50,945
$231,708 $145,541 $166,142
169,966 75,938 176,482
11,841 19,083 20,264
(354,010) (398,303) (508,386)
$59,505 ($157,741) ($145,498)
YTD 2008 YTD 2008 YTD 2007
Actual Budget Prior Year
563 624 629
630,072 697,475 632,839
$2,524,257 $2,446,722 $2,380,173
2,049,814 2,025,223 2,005,372
166,237 209,913 213,506
(4,907,636) (4,980,973) (4,935,927)
($167,328) ($299,115) ($336,876)

Event income came in comparable to forecast for the month. The highlight of the month being the
National Golden Gloves finals turning the Steelcase Ballroom into a venue with as many as three

boxing rings.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in well ahead of budget and forecast. Spending on a couple of catering events,
concessions on the Boxing, and Audio/Visual revenue on a handful of events led to the overage seen.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in a little lower than expected. Most of the savings coming in utilities as the
April accrual ended up being much higher than actual.




DE VOS PLACE
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/08

------------------ CURRENT - - - == = <= - === s mmmomn mmmmmccocaoae oo Y TDemmmmmmmmm = oo o =
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 246,733 149,500 190,403 2,699,972 2,630,900 2,523,060
SERVICES INCOME <15, 025> <3,959> <24,261> <175,716> <184,178> <142,886>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 231,708 145,541 166,142 2,524,257 2,446,722 2,380,173
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 83,493 29,311 94,761 791,429 771,036 758,652
NOVELTY 2,696 1,355 356 13,866 13,146 15,963
ELECTRICAL 29,958 11,672 14,181 464,075 405,497 419,509
OTHER ANCILLARY 53,820 33,600 67,184 780,444 835,544 811,248
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 169,966 75,938 176,482 2,049,814 2,025,223 2,005,372
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 401,674 221,479 | 342,624 4,574,071 4,471,945 4,385,545
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 11,841 19,083 20,264 166,237 209,913 213,506
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 413,515 240,562 362,888 4,740,308 4,681,858 4,599,051
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 10,068 13,884 10,467 130,794 152,724 124,439
FINANCE 17,619 17,379 17,651 192,943 191,169 200,912
MARKETING 2,481 8,722 2,719 54,234 95,942 64,432
OPERATIONS 123,787 109,287 168,375 1,254,440 1,276,097 1,291,512
EVENT MANAGEMENT 80,153 78,454 143,345 911,901 865,994 859,298
BOX OFFICE 5,839 6,469 6,107 65,167 71,159 80,749
SALES 16,276 20,728 15,495 187,478 228,008 199,022
OVERHEAD 97,787 143,380 144,228 2,110,678 2,099,880 2,115,563
INDIRECT EXPENSES 354,010 398,303 508,386 4,907,636 4,980,973 4,935,927
NET OPERATING INCOME 59,505 <157,741> <145,498> <167,328> <299,115> <336,876>
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) 59,505 <157,741> <145,498> <167,328> <299,115> <336,876>




DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/08

---------------- CURRENT------------o-2v- --------------YEAR TO DATE-------------
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 2,980 0 0 17,745 0 48,305
Changeover Setup Billed 1,180 0 812 14,788 0 7,738
Stagehands Billed 176,319 72,217 156,146 1,231,992 1,079,224 1,113,718
Security Billed 15,431 10,792 7,363 195,607 181,026 183,810
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 20,381 13,040 15,978 151,399 133,410 144,369
Box Office Billed 2,300 2,200 1,900 17,000 19,800 16,850
Ticketing Service Billed 23,648 17,840 9,288 145,071 172,050 152,808
Utilities Billed 0 0 0 5,967 0 3,641
City Police Fire Billed 2,460 100 5,320 32,865 13,225 48,131
Traffic Control Billed 630 0 0 980 200 "]
EMT Medical Billed 4,463 3,500 3,425 33,093 34,475 43,874
Cleaning Billed 0 0 350 13,925 [ 15,027
Insurance Billed 125 0 250 4,251 0 5,638
Group Sales Commissions Billed 956 0 133 1,291 0 1,419
Telephone Billed 1,355 2,000 1,050 40,625 32,460 45,440
Damages Billed 450 [ 0 5,043 0 12,029
Other Production Billed 5,069 0 3,745 70,600 0 70,764
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 257,747 121,689 205,758 1,982,241 1,665,870 1,913,561
Advertising Expense 3,306 0 0 18,521 ] 46,056
Sponsorship Expenses 7,000 0 0 7,000 0 2,500
Stagehand Wages 170,504 70,050 146,233 1,153,418 1,029,365 1,045,018
Contracted Security Expense 24,983 12,890 13,879 310,756 252,425 275,525
Ushers & T/T Wages 14,267 9,128 11,185 102,121 90,534 101, 058
Ticket Sellers Wages 2,168 4,400 1,174 20,775 50,200 21,023
Ticket Service Charge Expense 9,415 6,244 3,853 35,433 57,112 41,351
City Police Fire Expense 1,195 0 4,066 24,713 0 41,787
EMT Medical Expense 3,768 3,500 3,492 29,446 32,725 38,938
Cleaning Wages 0 0 2,652 7.172 0 5,070
Cleaning P/R Taxes Bene 0 0 0 677 0 0
Contracted Cleaning Expense 28,886 19,436 39,738 344,810 337,687 341,793
Insurance Expense 676 0 327 4,538 : 0 4,973
Group Sales Commissions o] 0 0 0 0 207
Allocated Telephone Expense 339 0 263 10,119 0 11,360
Equipment Rental Expense [} 0 0 1,025 0 [}
Damage Expense 0 0 0 3,793 0 6,696
Production Expense 6,265 0 3,157 83,640 v} 73,092
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 272,772 125,648 230,019 2,157,956 1,850,048 2,056,447

NET SERVICE INCOME <15,025> <3,959> <24,261> <175,716> <184,178> <142,886>




SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Year to Date Event Summary Report
For Month Ended May 31, 2008

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Convention/Trade Shows 161 150 184,805 192,600 2,082,929 2,002,972
Consumer/Gated Shows 58 64 195,902 227,300 1,014,300 998,016
Devos Performance Hall 144 149 173,271 184,250 761,896 684,008
Baliroom Exclusive 54 78 33,320 52,550 381,756 506,503
Other 146 183 42,774 40,775 333,124 280,446
GRAND TOTALS 563 624 630,072 697,475 4,574,005 4,471,945
As Percentage of Overall
Convention/Trade Shows 28.60% 24.04% 29.33% 27.61% 45.54% 44.79%
Consumer/Gated Shows 10.30% 10.26% 31.09% 32.59% 22.18% 22.32%
Devos Performance Hall 25.58% 23.88% 27.50% 26.42% 16.66% 15.30%
Ballroom Exclusive 9.59% 12.50% - 5.29% 7.53% 8.35% 11.33%

Other 25.93% 29.33% 6.79% 5.85% 7.28% 6.27%



DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/08

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH 838,711
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 634,199
PREPAID EXPENSES 38,168
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,511,078

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS 1,511,078

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 143,659
ACCRUED EXPENSES 425,791
DEFERRED INCOME 74,942
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS 363,029
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,007,422
EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED <1,150,000>
FUNDING RECEIVED 1,436,981
RETAINED EARNINGS 383,953
NET INCOME (LOSS) <167,278>
TOTAL EQUITY 503,656

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,511,078



SMG - DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
For Month Ended May 31, 2008

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Decorating
Audio/Visual
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days
Donnell Productions
Paragon Leather
Saigon Entertainment
Grinder Promotions

Total Accounts Receivable

170,173
138,372
25,079
13,981
175,559

82,354

13,547

5,736
2,110
5,002
2,286

634,199



Salaries Administration
Part-Time

Wages-Trade

Sales Commissions Group Sales
Auto Allowance

Auto Expense

Taxes & Benefits

Less: Allocation/Reimbursement

TOTAL LABOR COSTS

Contracted Security
Contracted Cleaning
Other Contracted Services
Travel & Entertainment
Corporate Travel
Meetings & Conventions
Dues & Subscriptions
Employee Training
Miscellaneous Expense
Computer Expense
Professional Fees
Marketing & Advertising
Box Office Expenses
Vehicle Maintenance
Trash Removal
Equipment Rental
Landscaping
Exterminating
Cleaning

Construction Costs
Repairs & Maintenance
Supplies

Bank Service Charges
Insurance

Licenses & Fees
Printing & Stationary
office Supplies
Postage

Parking Expense
Relocation Expense
Telephone Long Distance
Utilities

Base Fee

Less: Allocated/Reimbursement

TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES

TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES

DE VOS PLACE

INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/08

————————————————— CURRENT-=====cccemeccmcan comee oo mem e e e tYTD- - - mm - m v oo m oo
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
70,798 75,069 66,832 780,325 825,759 780, 102
17,422 13,167 14,475 163,741 144,837 150, 318
183,048 121,023 165,238 1,491,269 1,331,253 1,408,756
37 0 74 330 0 851
2,071 2,271 2,121 22,429 24,981 23,329
150 0 150 1,650 0 1,650
77,377 52,468 130,632 695,878 577,148 631,163
<206,746> <113,125> <177,412> <1,509,445> <1,244,375> <1,386, 041>
144,157 150,873 202,110 1,646,177 1,659,603 1,610,129
28,529 21,000 27,819 272,824 231,000 254,272
13,903 0 3,523 38,219 0 33,415
210 200 190 2,216 2,200 2,197
343 1,209 819 16,562 13,299 13,930
571 417 0 1,077 4,587 4]
<2,000> 1,958 208 14,621 30,038 16, 266
0 300 342 6,693 3,300 5,815
975 833 1,255 3,833 9,163 10, 140
100 0 256 100 0 264
5,501 6,250 4,980 57,093 68,750 57,203
2,343 3,042 2,250 24,937 33,462 28, 641
719 6,800 357 36,556 74,800 37,692
<12> 0 <148> 392 0 <94>
0 0 0 0 0 14
2,873 2,500 5,620 31,569 27,500. 32,672
1,908 1,000 1,847 15,569 11,000 15,891
1,062 833 1,062 7,432 9,163 10,461
0 1,000 23,848 28,143 55,440 51,412
0 [ 1,850 5,250 24,000 15,200
0 0 0 0 0 150
42,430 39,792 40,140 522,499 437,712 419,558
7,129 24,583 51,976 191,357 270,413 274,201
2,146 1,500 1,999 21,457 16,500 18,450
24,996 22,187 21,905 257,609 244,057 248,851
0 0 0 2,165 0 3,489
0 417 <178> 1,573 4,587 6,370
2,056 750 2,505 13,419 8,250 17,529
71 417 48 3,781 4,587 3,357
2,305 1,500 2,174 25,639 16,500 22,888
757 0 0 7,162 0 0
8,382 6,000 7,620 83,676 66,000 83,126
50,059 92,000 89,774 1,436,981 1,534,700 1,516,299
12,838 12,775 12,500 141,213 140,525 137,500
<339> <1,833> <263> <10,156> <20,163> <11,360>
209,853 247,430 306,276 3,261,459 3,321,370 3,325,798
354,010 398,303 508,386 4,907,636




SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2008

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2007
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,590,805 (540,501) 1,050,304 1,238,267
Benchmark ' 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,590,805 (540,501) 350,304 538,267

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

Base Fee 153,300 153,300 306,600 300,000
Incentive Fee

Revenue 5,544,533 4,843,298 10,387,831 10,411,774

Benchmark Revenue 4,650,000 4,050,000 8,700,000 8,600,000

Revenue Excess 894,533 793,298 1,687,831 1,811,774

Incentive Fee ** 153,300 153,300 306,600 300,000
Total SMG Management Fee 306,600 306,600 613,200 600,000

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

GRAND RAPIDS

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MAY 31, 2008

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An 5MG Managed Facllity

Item IIl.b.1.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2008

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE

NO. EVENTS 115 2 117 116 1
ATTENDANCE 648,741 13,000 661,741 666,500 (4,759)
DIRECT EVENT INCOME 1,508,855 56,850 1,565,705 1,183,930 381,775
ANCILLARY INCOME 1,434,704 41,282 1,475,986 1,567,304 (91,318)
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 2,943,559 98,132 3,041,691 2,751,234 280,457
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 2,304,517 198,325 2,502,842 2,395,000 107,842
TOTAL INCOME 5,248,075 296,457 5,544,533 5,146,234 398,299
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 181,424 16,547 197,971 146,498 (51,473)
FINANCE 176,580 21,859 198,439 204,274 5,835
MARKETING 245,299 24,507 269,806 282,151 12,345
OPERATIONS 1,351,708 191,360 1,643,068 1,487,583 (55,485)
BOX OFFICE 129,427 6,312 135,739 119,613 (16,126)
LUXURY SEATING 114,165 6,089 120,254 117,298 (2,956)
SKYWALK ADMIN 41,439 1,308 42,747 39,856 (2,891)
OVERHEAD 1,342,857 102,847 1,445,704 1,378,745 (66,959)

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP. 3,682,899 370,829 3,953,728 3,776,018 (177,710)
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES 1,665,176 (74,372) 1,590,805 1,370,216 220,589
LESS INCENTIVE FEE 153,300 153,300 -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER INCENTIVE 1,665,176 (74,372) 1,437,505 1,216,916 220,589

Comments:

May concludes a very successful month that ends up being one of the top
five fiscal months in Arena history. The success of the concerts, in addition

to some conservative forecasting given recent volatility on the concert schedule,
the Arena should conclude the fiscal year well ahead of both budget and forecast.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED MAY 31, 2008

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending May 31, 2008
and the YTD ending June 30, 2008 compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH May May May

Actual Budget FY 2007
Number of Events 11 8 7
Attendance 75,648 59,000 51,716
Direct Event Income $291,979 $178,750 $142,035
Ancillary Income 222,481 172,618 156,379
Other Income 274,509 199,583 198,861
Indirect Expenses (305,775) (309,044) (284,419)
Net Income $483,194 $241,907 $212,857
YTD YTD 2008 YTD 2008 YTD 2007

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 115 113 125
Attendance 648,741 642,500 653,119
Direct Event Income $1,508,855 $1,148,764 $1,484,237
Ancillary Income 1,434,704 1,537,418 1,580,664
Other Income 2,304,517 2,195,413 2,201,396
Indirect Expenses (3,582,898) (3,486,984) (3,529,439)
Net Income $1,665,177 $1,394,611 $1,736,859

EVENT INCOME .

Event income came in well ahead of budget for the month. The highlights of the month was the sold out Tom
Petty concert, near sellouts of both Kenny Chesney concerts, and strong selling The Police, Bill Gaither, WWE

and Backyardigans shows.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in ahead of budget as spending on food & beverage for all events hosted during the
month exceeded expectations.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses was consistent with expectations.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/08

----------------- CURRENT -~ = === == == == == === =mmmommcmem oo o YTDmmm o mmmom oo
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 363,529 176,600 112,404 2,116,401 1,790,300 2,076,860
SERVICES INCOME <71,550> 2,150 29,630 <607,547> <641,536> <592, 622>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 291,979 178,750 142,035 1,508,855 1,148,764 1,484,237
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 199,700 128,490 120,307 1,211,226 1,256,629 1,329,682
NOVELTY 33,842 42,500 29,493 184,881 242,505 207,195
OTHER ANCILLARY <11,061> 1,628 6,580 38,596 38,284 43,788
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 222,481 172,618 156,379 1,434,704 1,537,418 1,580,664
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 514,460 351,368 298,414 2,943,559 2,686,182 3,064,902
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 274,509 199,583 198,861 2,304,517 2,195,413 2,201,396
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 788,969 550,951 497,276 5,248,076 4,881,595 5,266,298
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 35,565 12,083 11,271 181,424 134,413 141,316
FINANCE 14,940 16,898 17,386 176,580 187,378 181,228
MARKETING 24,147 23,388 16,224 245,299 258,768 271,419
LUXURY SEATING 8,091 9,775 7,112 114,165 107,525 105,481
OPERATIONS 107,391 123,714 105,678 1,351,708 1,363,854 1,341,014
BOX OFFICE 4,342 9,968 8,722 129,427 109,648 129,337
SKYWALK ADMINISTRATION 3,028 3,322 2,794 41,439 36,542 42,239
OVERHEAD 108,271 109,896 115,232 1,342,857 1,288,856 1,317,408
INDIRECT EXPENSES 305,775 309,044 284,419 3,582,898 3,486,984 3,529,439
NET OPERATING INCOME 483,194 241,907 212,857 1,665,177 1,394,611 1,736,859
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) 483,194 241,907 212,857 1,665,177 1,394,611 1,736,859




VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/08

------ ~~==-----CURRENT----------------- --------------YEAR TO DATE-------------

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 48,079 0 53,224 271,703 108,000 509,630
Spongorship Income 0 0 [¢] o] 0 121,593
Labor Billed 4,540 3,150 3,275 21,809 13,540 24,142
Changeover Setup Billed 35,498 20,200 25,836 173,207 87,400 127,713
Stagehands Billed 162,706 79,000 56,094 697,115 414,350 472,279
Security Billed 39,244 30,900 26,965 157,868 130,700 157,468
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 25,203 19,650 21,017 121,949 101,130 116,879
Box Office Billed 387 2,000 774 1,548 8,116 7,832
Ticketing Service Billed 22,668 40,000 13,440 100,771 197,200 89,744

Utilities Billed 3,480 0 4,438 15,180 0 10,250 |
City Police Fire Billed 3,072 2,352 2,275 17,387 10,300 13,405
EMT Medical Billed 3,683 3,150 3,690 21,847 19,100 22,034
Cleaning Billed 26,542 18,800 22,076 129,213 84,300 120,576
Group Sales Commissions Billed 5,752 0 4,277 17,733 [ 15, 649
Telephone Billed 4,910 4,000 2,820 21,805 23,850 24,185
Damages Billed 0 0 0 400 0 1,079
Other Production Billed 57,283 36,500 20,468 246,602 153,400 238,994
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 443,046 259,702 260,666 2,016,137 1,351,386 2,073,452
Advertising Expense 58,915 0 54,631 291,433 118,000 568,132
Sponsorship Expenses 0 [] 0 0 0 1,653
Labor Wages 3,859 2,678 2,784 19,133 11,511 20,521
Contracted Changeover Setup Expense 27,114 23,455 18,471 251,774 236,777 221,468
Stagehand Wages 168,974 77,177 52,614 727,321 438,279 488, 741
Contracted Security Expense 44,596 27,080 29,562 305,597 242,190 302,985
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense 26,167 20,960 26,506 265,243 257,470 285,335
Ticket Sellers Wages 329 0 658 1,316 0 6,841
Ticket Service Charge Expense 51,708 40,000 12,817 160,312 196,920 99,203
City Police Fire Expense 1,375 2,352 847 8,624 13,222 8,776
EMT Medical Expense 7,079 3,339 3,830 36,026 35,213 37,959
Contracted Cleaning Expense 26,681 22,691 16,291 244,078 276,086 226,004
Group Sales Commissions 1,384 0 1,283 4,883 0 7,951
Allocated Telephone Expense 1,563 1,320 606 6,481 6,554 6,956
Production Expense 94,852 36,500 10,135 301,463 160,700 383,549
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 514,596 257,552 231,036 2,623,683 1,992,922 2,666,074

NET SERVICE INCOME <71,550> 2,150 29,630 <607,547> <641,536> <592,622>




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending May 31, 2008

Event Type

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games
Other

GRAND TOTALS

As Percentage of Overall

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games
Other

totals

Events/Days

Actual

28

6

25

47

9

115

24.35%

5.22%

21.74%

40.87%

7.83%

125

Budget
33

4

21

46

113

29.20%
3.54%
18.58%
40.71%
7.96%

118

Attendance Total Event Income
Actual Budget Actual Budget
108,326 146,500 460,446 596,819
33,850 27,000 246,027 169,881
196,657 172,000 1,631,283 1,430,563
247,529 248,000 446,709 430,861
62,379 49,000 159,094 58,058
648,741 642,500 2,943,559 2,686,182
16.70% 22.80% 15.64% 22.22%
5.22% 4.20% 8.36% 6.32%
30.31% 26.77% 55.42% 53.26%
38.16% 38.60% 15.18% 16.04%
9.62% 7.63% 5.40% 2.16%
589630 678400 2204611 2494767



VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/08

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED
FUNDING RECEIVED
RETAINED EARNINGS
NET INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

5,473,228
178,785
151,774

5,803,786

1,782,719
591,103
543,808

2,081,599

<2,400,000>
865,365
677,565
1,661,629

5,803,786



SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending May 31, 2008

Current - Under 30 Days

Food & Beverage 98,487

Ticketing -

Merchandise 23,208

Permanent Advertising (4,627)

Operating 61,717
Over 30 Days -
Over 60 Days -
Over 90 Days

Total Accounts Receivable 178,785



Salaries Administration
Part-Time
Wages-Trade

Sales Commissions Group Sales

Auto Allowance
Auto Expense

Taxes & Benefits

Less: Allocation/Reimbursement

TOTAL LABOR COSTS

Contracted Security
Contracted Cleaning
Other Contracted Services
Travel & Entertainment
Corporate Travel
Meetings & Conventions
Dues & Subscriptions
Employee Training
Miscellaneous Expense
Computer Expense
Professional Fees
Marketing & Advertising
Box Office Expenses
Trash Removal
Equipment Rental
Landscaping
Exterminating
Cleaning

Repairs & Maintenance
Supplies

Bank Service Charges
Insurance

Licenses & Fees
Printing & Stationary
Office Supplies
Postage

Parking Expense
Telephone Long Distance
Utilities

Base Fee

Letter of Credit Fee

Common Area Expense

Less: Allocated/Reimbursement

TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES

TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES

VAN ANDEL ARENA
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/08

---------------- CURRENT - - = === = --mmcmmmom mmmceccecemmoe oo SYTDemmmmmmmmmmmm e
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
56,859 63,488 56,151 666,916 698,368 657,820
5,745 5,833 5,446 83,101 64,163 79,480
181,872 69,903 81,188 1,013,739 768,933 847,543
<1,071> 0 1,458 4,207 0 12,270
594 985 594 6,531 10,835 6,531
300 0 300 3,300 0 3,300
48,022 40,100 36,360 404,800 441,100 415,868
<190,557> <59,022> <74,037> <936,458> <649,242> <721,250>
101,765 121,287 107,461 1,246,136 1,334,157 1,301,562
24,482 21,000 17,872 235,249 231,000 222,069
2,223 2,500 2,224 24,893 27,500 25,432
1,896 300 400 39,272 3,300 20,218
153 858 307 21,203 9,438 14,363
571 625 0 571 6,875 0
2,759 350 208 6,092 11,350 3,528
0 208 300 7,579 2,288 6,887
975 750 1,255 2,134 8,250 3,519
[ [ 0 300 0 269
8,761 5,417 4,453 68,673 59,587 64,695
27,537 2,583 3,420 58,021 28,413 34,383
12,217 12,083 3,671 117,523 132,913 144,588
<4,392> 0 0 452 0 <1,115>
1,934 1,500 3,445 20,798 16,500 22,323
2,561 1,250 1,660 15,307 13,750 17,195
345 483 345 2,415 5,313 3,966
248 300 248 2,723 3,300 2,678
0 900 0 7,825 9,900 4,900
11,103 16,166 10,528 266,212 177,826 186,655
10,529 17,008 15,308 187,070 187,088 187,821
684 750 336 8,187 8,250 5,508
20,182 15,037 15,132 161,844 165,407 178,125
0 0 0 2,000 0 3,000
78 917 0 1,665 10,087 5,603
1,373 1,000 2,316 14,455 11,000 16,500
1,590 1,000 902 12,850 11,000 13,310
2,658 2,000 2,538 29,287 22,000 27,807
7,920 7,000 4,348 57,693 77,000 55,756
57,032 66,317 76,327 865,365 809,487 858,634
12,838 12,775 12,500 141,213 140,525 137,500
[ 0 0 394 1] 0
<2,685> <2,945> <2,477> <36,748> <32,395> <31,282>
<1,563> <375> <606> <6,332> <4,125> <6,956>
204,010 187,757 176,958 2,336,185 2,152,827 2,227,877
305,775 309, 044 284,419 3,582,321 3,486,984 3,529,439




SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2008

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2007
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,590,805 (540,501) 1,050,304 1,238,267
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,590,805 (540,501) 350,304 538,267

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

Base Fee 153,300 153,300 306,600 300,000
Incentive Fee

Revenue 5,544,533 4,843,298 10,387,831 10,411,774

Benchmark Revenue 4,650,000 4,050,000 8,700,000 8,600,000

Revenue Excess 894,533 793,298 1,687,831 1,811,774

Incentive Fee ** 153,300 153,300 306,600 300,000
Total SMG Management Fee 306,600 306,600 613,200 600,000

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



Convention
Arena

Authority

Steven Heacock,
Chairman

Birgit Klohs

Clif Charles

Gary Mclnerney

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli

Lew Chamberlin

VAN ANDEL
ARENA

Van Andel Arena®
130 Fulton West

Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2601
616.742.6600 6
Fax 616.742.6197 Fax 6

Item III.b.ii.

GRAND RMT COUNTY
e e o

T e i i e i
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. CONVENTION. 5HOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

Memorandum
To: CAA Board Members
From: Susan Waddell, Administrative Manager
Date: June 19, 2008
Re: CAA Financial Statements

The following is a summary of financial activity in the two operating accounts as of
May 31, 2008:

1050: Operations 1070: Kent County Operating

$551,461.88 $21,167,063.10

Beginning Balance

Cleared Transactions -46,221.02 447,148.34
Cleared Balance 505,240.86 21,644,211.44
Uncleared Transactions 553.36 0.00
Ending Balance $505,794.22 $21.644.211.44

¢ Interest earnings continue to exceed budgeted expectations.

e The land lease line item is under budget due to timing of the payments.

e The personal services line item is under budget because the expense
reimbursement from the Kent County Parks Foundation for administrative services
is not considered.

If you have any questions or would like additional information, please contact me at
742-6594 or swaddell@smggr.com. Thank you.

DeVos Place®

303 Monroe Ave. NW
Grand Rapids, M|l 49503-22

B
NN
OO W
OO W




9:52 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

06/10/08 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of May 31, 2008
May 31, 08
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1040 - Cash - Operations - SMG 4,068,974.10
1050 - Operations - Cash 505,794.22
Total Checking/Savings 4,574,768.32
Other Current Assets .
1070 - Kent County - Operating 21,644,211.44
1200 - Accounts Receivable 1,424,324.17
1300 - Prepaid Expenses 161,220.35
1600 - Advances/Deposits Receivable -3,700,000.07
Total Other Current Assets I __1_9,529,755:§9_
Total Current Assets 24,104,524.21
Fixed Assets
Buildings & Structures
Depreciation -41,778.69
Original Cost 322,431.00
Total Buildings & Structures 280,652.31
Equip
Depreciation -589,296.08
Original Cost 969,236.60
Total Equip 379,940.52
Vehicles ) 43,914.30
Total Fixed Assets 704,507.13
TOTAL ASSETS 24,809,031.34
LIABILITIES & EQUITY i
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 - Accounts Payable 129,664.05
2005 - Accounts payable - SMG o 598,094.17
Total Accounts Payable 727,758.22
Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Accrued Expenses 803,918.61
2210 - Advance Ticket Sales 1,993,226.73
2220 - Advance deposits 291,205.00
2500 - Deferred facility income 906,555.74
2700 - Entertainment Equipment Reserve 60,000.00
Total Other Current Liabilities - 4,054,906.08
Total Current Liabilities 4,782,664.30
Total Liabilities 4,782,664.30
Equity
3000 - Opening Bal Equity 37,035,584.45
3900 - Retained Earnings -14,931,143.70
Net Income i -2,078,073.71
Total Equity _ 20.026,367.04
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 24,809,031.34




9:53 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
06/10/08 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

Accrual Basis July 2007 through May 2008

Jul '07 - May 08 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
Income
4500 - Interest on Investments 762,681.41 749,999.97 12,681.44 101.7%
4540 - Land Lease 81,007.00 115,874.00 -34,867.00 69.9%
4545 - Parking Revenues 812,099.00 791,002.63 21,096.37 102.7%
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue 730.50
Total Income 1 .656.5.1 7.91 1,656,876.60 -358.69 100.0%
Expense
6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services 29,138.42 27,500.00 1,638.42 106.0%
6040 - Legal Services 10,414.50 32,083.26 -21,668.76 32.5%
Total 6000 - Professional Services 39,552.92 59,583.26 -20,030.34 66.4%
6080 - Other Contractual Services 98,517.07 146,208.26 -47,691.19 67.4%
6065 - Pedestrian Safety 79,748.07 82,500.00 -2,751.93 96.7%
6068 - Parking Management 249,253.43 334,806.01 -85,562.58 74.4%
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees 499.09
6020 - Computer Services 634.90
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability 20,258.00 21,000.00 -742.00 96.5%
6110 - Meeting Expense 357.76 9,166.63 -8,808.87 3.9%
6120 - Supplies 188.34 4,583.26 -4,394.92 4.1%
Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses 21,938.09 34,749.89 -12,811.80 63.1%
6160 - Facility Repair and Maintenance 4,219.20
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects 516,5693.17 631,583.26 -114,990.09 81.8%
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance 27,850.37 32,083.26 -4,232.89 86.8%
6300 - Utilities Expense
6301 - Electricity 1,128,556.54 1,129,333.26 -776.72 99.9%
6310 - Natural Gas 11,885.08 16,500.00 -4,614.92 72.0%
6320 - Steam 1,021,141.75 1,079,500.00 -58,358.25 94.6%
6340 - Water & Sewer 111,236.70 103,125.00 8,111.70 107.9%
Total 6300 - Utilities Expense 2,272,820.07 2,328,458.26 -55,638.19 97.6%
6500 - DID Assessment 51,350.58 46,815.01 4,535.57 109.7%
6600 - SMG Incentive Fees 300,000.00 281,050.00 18,950.00 106.7%
8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages 54,173.50 78,436.38 -24,262.88 69.1%
8030 - Employee Benefits 18,575.15 17,888.75 686.40 103.8%
Total 8000 - Personal Services 72,748.65 96,325.13 -23,576.48 75.5%
Total Expense 3,734,591.62 4,074,162.34 -339,570.72 91.7%
Net Income -2,078,073.71 -2,417,285.74 339,212.03 86.0%




9:54 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
06/10/08 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison

Accrual Basis July 2007 through May 2008

Jul '07 - May 08 Jul '06 - May 07 $ Change % Change
Income
4040 - Private Support 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4500 - Interest on Investments 762,681.41 896,897.94 -134,216.53 -15.0%
4540 - Land Lease 81,007.00 128,793.00 -47,786.00 -37.1%
4545 - Parking Revenues 812,099.00 784,025.74 28,073.26 3.6%
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue 730.50 0.00 730.50 100.0%
Total Income 1,656,517.91 1,809,716.68 -163,198.77 -8.5%
Expense
6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services 29,138.42 24,286.39 4,852.03 20.0%
6040 - Legal Services 10,414.50 21,250.14 -10,835.64 -51.0%
Total 6000 - Professional Services 39,562.92 45,536.53 -5,983.61 -13.1%
6060 - Other Contractual Services 98,517.07 33,293.80 65,223.27 195.9%
6065 - Pedestrian Safoty 79,748.07 42,737.39 37,010.68 86.6%
6068 - Parking Management 249,253.43 251,837.36 -2,583.93 -1.0%
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees 499.09 464.05 35.04 7.6%
6020 - Computer Services 634.90 299.00 335.90 112.3%
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability 20,258.00 19,196.86 1,061.14 5.5%
6110 - Meeting Expense 357.76 236.46 121.30 51.3%
6120 - Supplies 188.34 5,430.82 -5,242.48 -96.5%
6140 - Printing and Binding 0.00 4,470.00 -4,470.00 -100.0%
Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses 21,938.09 30,097.19 -8,159.10 27.1%
6160 - Facility Repair and Maintenance 4,219.20 0.00 4,219.20 100.0%
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects 516,593.17 1,619,318.24 -1,102,725.07 -68.1%
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance 27,850.37 52,993.18 -25,142.81 -47.5%
6300 - Utilities Expense
6301 - Electricity 1,128,556.54 1,090,471.65 38,084.89 3.5%
6310 - Natural Gas 11,885.08 11,276.05 609.03 5.4%
6320 - Steam 1,021,141.75 1,106,963.30 -85,821.55 -7.8%
6340 - Water & Sewer 111,236.70 99,132.05 12,104.65 12.2%
Total 6300 - Utilities Expense 2,272,820.07 2,307,843.06 -35,022.98 -1.5%
6500 - DID Assessment 51,350.58 50,298.90 1,051.68 2.1%
6600 - SMG Incentive Fees 300,000.00 229,259.00 70,741.00 30.9%
8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages 54,173.50 58,251.14 -4,077.64 -7.0%
8030 - Employee Benefits 18,575.15 19,504.91 -929.76 -4.8%
Total 8000 - Personal Services 72,748.65 77,756.05 -5,007.40 -6.4%
Total Expense 3,734,591.62 4,740,970.69 -1,006,379.07 -21.2%
Net Income -2,078,073.71 -2,931,254.01 853,180.30 29.1%




Item II1.b.iii.

DE VOS PLACE

OPERATING BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2009

***INCLUDES APRIL ROLLING FORECAST***

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

SMe>

An SMG Managed Facllity




882'961 (pos'sLe)  (uz6'8l8)  (199'882) 6Z6'9Z  (9€0°L9) GIB'E0Z  6ZL'9EL  62ZL'S (bze'sll)  (G16'22)  (oev'ar)  (LLi'sl)  (€ss'vD)  (916'L22) (SSO7) INOONI ALIIOV L3N
(222'¢82) 02Z'€Se's  Cvb'ol9's  Ses'beE  BBE'0EP  EMB'ISY  9ZL'0EG 168285  GB0'9ZS  O06L'SIS WLy oTT'ioP  966'lITh IpL's0b  0Z'86E S3ISNIdX3 LOIMIANI TVLOL
10e'ze €69'042'  ZeE'¥ST'Z  98E'0LL  LiS'l€) Zre'6LL 086'8SZ L6 686'¥GT  vYO'PPEZ  0LO'GOZ  S20'€8)  GlG'EEh  OPE'pZL  €0S'vEl avIHE3IA0
(95%°01) oLL'L9 82e'LL 89 69%'9 6949 69v'e 69t'9 69b'9 69v'9 69p'9 60t'9 69b°'9 69v'9 699 301440 X08
80P 85696 021696 801'08 z8L'08 z8l'08 z81'08 4:18> ] 28108 zsl'os z81'08 zsi'o8 z81'08 z81'08 zeL'o8 S30IANIS IN3A3
(960'62) SIE'68E'L  vL'89Y'L  $59'9ZL 098'SEL  OVO'pLL G8S'ELL G8G'6ZL  SBS'EHL  S8S'EL) ovo'vLL oro'ozZt 098'9EL  O¥9'9TL ovi'oLt SNOLLYYILO
(g2v'sel) 109°802 920'Lve 906'62 026’82 026'8Z 026'82 0z6's2 0ze'se 026'82 026'82 026'82 0Z6'82 0z6'8Z 026'82 SIS
'z ¥e0'e8 118's01 +28'8 1188 118'8 Lig's L18'8 1188 L18'8 8’8 L18'8 18'8 Ll8's L18'8 ONILINEYIN
usi'y) poL'122 tog'zee sts'st 9z6'8lL 9z5'8L 925'81 9zs'8l 9z5'8l 9z5'8L [:74-3:18 9z5'8l 925'8l 925'8t 925’8t JONWNId
(085'vE) 4:]% 40 zoL'sL) SYo'vl o'vL P -34% o'l Lo'vL Ly9'vL Lr9'vL o'l Lv8'vL 'L o'l o'yl 3ALND3XT
SIASN3dX3 LO3HIONI
0L0'08Y oSv'LLL'Y  99V'IET'S  868°60L 126'165  108'v8E WO'vEL  €8S'PCL  PIZ'IEG  992'S6E  96Ceby  96L0vF  618'80F  @8S'PEE  8ZZOLI SWOONI SSON9 aalsnray
zLeL 811'661 005'01Z sl sl sl sl v5'LL TYs'LL Tys'LL e’ ws'LL Vel sl Trs'Ls 3WOONI ¥3HLO TV10L
286 815'9 00S'L 529 7 s29 G629 529 s29 S29 529 52 629 529 629 3WODNI H3IHLO
'y 859'ce 000°'8E 91'e m81'e 81' 1'e I-1 91't 91'e m91'e 91 m91'e m1'e 91’ ONLLY3S WNINIXd
sYZ'T SSLZHE 000'sP1 €802 £80°Z1 £€80'Z) £€80'2L €80°2L £80'Z1 £80'Z1 €80°ZL €80'Z1 €80'ZL €80'C1 €80°21 SIALLNIONI LINOWL
£51°9 p8'EL 00002 199'1 199'1 189't 199'tL 199°L 199°t 199'L 199°) 2991 189°L 109°tL 199°L 3WOONI LS3UTLNI
IWOONI ONILYHSJO H3HLO
8s8z'ovt 810'086'Y  996'920'S  1SE's8 98E'0YS  99Z'/9€  00S'OLL  SPO'Z0L  TI9'ElS vZL'LIE SSUley  ve2'eey  LLZ'LeE 9PO'LLE £89'2764 ANOONI IN3AT V101
(X 865'/90'C  ZeE'98E'T  LO0l'th o16'z6z  SrL'oLt 166'9L€  YOL'BOE  IBL'LZZ  Z6BL'661 loL'8Lz ZOT'GLT  €L0°18L €15'694 669'78 IWOONI AYVTIIONY VLOL
8v1'6p LYE'EEL s6v'z81 €50 156'6L 059'ct \SL'LT vv'ie ¥E8'6) SYE'ZL 28'v LERL S¥5'L 506’6 S18'y INININDI
989'8 121's92 e18'ose 908'S eLe'8e 57474 €5E'ES 29L'2s IEL'SE zel'ee 90582 129'L2 856'L2 L80°64 €ez'e VNSINOIaNY
SeT'Ll LiV'oly z5e'I6b 128 eL'es Shl'ee LoL'vL 9L8°EL 16€'€S oez'ee 916'6¢ 189'8¢ £51'6¢ 299'9Z 50°eL WORLOIR
220'vs 106'S9€ £26'6LY $20°L 1Z8'sy 80%'1E 158'€9 051'e9 6€9'sP S0b'8C ozL've z90'cee SOP'EE m.Lze 6L0'5t HOLVH003a
v62'LL oLL'LL vev'ze 9.¢ Sv'e 089'L alr'e 6€'€ ' 6164 [r4: 48 9L 16L'L 0z 265 ALTAAON
+69'66 681'299 £88'LSL 61621 11808 ov0'es 06825 €L6'st 98505 209'S6 ¥5'06 £99'v6 9ZP'vs 8Ip'6L VEG'6E ONRIILYD
559'G Lvl'SSy ov'i9l ose't 861} 6L 625'LY z8l'ee oz'LL vS6'y 69€'8 160'c SeL's Y04 86E'Y SNOISS3ONOD
SWOONI AYYTHONY
¥65°'221 080'€LS'C  +EQ'0OVOT 0S8’V 0.8°282 165'961 €05'66€ 182’866 S8y’ 2£6'Ll} 8vo'clz 266202  $OZ'0LZ  €ES'ipl 886'69 SINOONI LNSA3 LO3MIQ TVLOL
oe'enl) (og'eol)  (10£'2) (ler'ey)  (oov'el)  (epe’ze)  (Gpe'ed)  (0BS'sh)  (ev6'tl)  (8evy'ph)  (eeo'el)  (esb'el)  (26L'Y) (€90'p) IWOONI 30IANIS
000°208'C 000°208'Z  0S6'9Y 00020  0S6'602  0S8'9Zy  SZL'ZZ¥  GLO'SOE  S.8'68L 610’82  S20'LZZ  00L'€ZT  SeE'TSL 0S0'vL AN
IWOONI IN3A3 LO3uIa
€21 28T Lv9 626'899 626’9 529'81 626'L6 000°€Z) 0s8'LE 00¥'eS 61929 0sZ'zy 526'89 00699 526'9L SL6'L2 JONVANILLY
€L (714 295 4! 2] 14 29 14 €S 44 2s 69 1] 0s 44 STONVNHOSMIA/SAVA INSAI
WA IOWISS 135and NNP AVIN Hdv YW g3d NV 03a AON 120 438 onvy anre
800C Ad 600C Ad
600 ‘0¢ sunp 3uipuy Jeax [BIs1Y

JWINTYS IWOIT] PRI

ARIOYINY BUATY/UONUIATGY) AJuN0)) Judy] - spidey puwan)
9w $0A3Q - DS



Auomny BuaIy/monu3Ane)) Ajuno)) jud)y - spidey puein

el 50A( - DINS

818'6 165'020T 6EV'99LT | s8t'ss0°t (Zzs'29) SIy'eeL’) 05661} i SMOHSIAVHL/SNOLLNIANOD TVLOL
8212 ov0'ss 2806 syv'ey (szz'e) 009')S 0s2'tL 6 obup - smoysapel] I8N
6ZL's - 6Z1'8 v08‘c (tog) Fr4:x4 001°) I lleWS - SMOYSBpRIL ISIW
{299°66) 899'66 - - - - - - Buppiompoop
zZov'ie - zov'ie szL'vt {roL’t) 006'L1 oov'y z UBLUOM
- . - - - - - - Je9eM
(vZ1'vo) L' - . - - - - uopepodsuel)
z0z'es - z02'TS zev've (te6°1) 00L'6Z 052 € $9|GqoH B sAoL
- - - - - - - - 92Us2S!

- - - - - - - - Rojeg)
926°251 sZL'LS 150'012 928°16 (toz2's) szZ6°121 008'cl 13 snoibijey
(¥89°2) 892 - - - - - - aes3 [eoy
(e9e't) % ~4 +8202 nrL's (692) sz8'tt 005'C 4 8]qed 3 ‘AL ‘olpey
62084 . 620'81 siv's (sv2) 00£°01 0002 3 leapijod
£6Z's) - £62's1 8512 (995} 00L'8 0SL't € adjjod
ve8'LL 16v'sy SSE'L9 $66°6Y (0s2) 0s1L°ZL 0052 3 se § wnejoned
- - - . - - - - sjeannadeulieyd
(p20'2)) 2021 - - - - - - 2sniy
(6z9't) 629°L - - - - - - sa)dhasotop
£50'8Z - £50'82 698'vL {218) 00L'v) 005°t {5 sBupeod 3 sbuppomjere
(Z1p'L) 6Z2ZL 818'v9 680°0¢ (zeL'y) 005's¢ 00L'sL zt aued tiesH B [edpol
- - - - - - - - saueq]
(vzo'sl) zZ19°051 685°'LEL YL (19t'y) 52988 000'0L s Bujuapaes g buidesspuey
(s58°'L) orzlL ovs'oL 9¢6'y (osg) 0009 00L‘t i 8duRINSUY|
98¢'95 1ie'88 269't1L 6v6'0L (zzL's) §28'8L 0s0'cl 6 )
{evp'vL) [ Ayt - - - - - . Ausnpuj [eseung)
svL'L 996'59) LoL'sLl 9£2's01 (092'v) sTT'eL 0006 9 uonnqsiq 2 buissedold pood
zze'L §12's01 2£0°201 960'08 (6s6'c) 006°09 00Z'L 9 aJnynofuoH g eJmnouoly
. . - - - - - - Busysiy|
(152'2) 898°29 8£9°08 08¢'8Z {ev2'e) 005've 005'y € BupesuiSuy
660°811 86Y'c0V 965°128 TrP'ese (ezz'cl) SL£'512Z 000°s¢ e uopeanp3
(512'c6) si2'ee - - - - - - [®ueg
92¢'st §99'9 166°12 LiL'0L (082) 000'Z8 000'c 14 suopes|ddy g siandwod
(858°LL) 858°LL - - - - - - BIBMSSED 2 BUIYD
(vp1'0) e - - - - - - SSBlD B SjWese)
68L'Y 0se'st (51574 6'sh (s02) 00601 00Z'y € ssaujsng
I8 ] 6¥5°2¢ zo9'se 00Z's} (v99')) seL'ze 000'y s uoposnisuod g bupjing
129's SEZ'8s 958'v9 v5¢°'0¢ (66£°2) 006'9¢ 005'y [+ aseD JjeH B Mneeg
(zz1'92) ez - - - - - - Gupjueg
886'CH §86°LY £26°19 152'82 (veo) 0SE'vE osL'y 14 Gupyanuy g sagowoiny
(921'66) 082'881 §09'68 Ly'es (zre'e) SIv'6E 0012 S SUORE[IOSSY|
6v8'22 - 682 v69°0L (sv8) 000°ct 005°ZH ] [oseddy
(066°26) 066'26 - - - - - - sfeunuy|
068'25 089'sE 02516 £82'oy (wir'e) 006°LY [l 23 9 Bujuuey g ainynouby|
8002 AJ 600Z Ad awodu] swoou] awodu) asuepusiy CUTYE] STIVH NOLLIGIHX3

AONVRIVA JWODNI ARODNI Kejiiouy ad)nes fejuay JOON
AN3A3 AN3A3 8002
6007 ‘o€ 2unf Jupoy Jedx peosty
Aremimng JuaAg




| os2's0¢ | zos'ser'e X | see'zve’t (6v1'914) SLE'T16°'L 528°18¢ [1X4 TIVH NOLLISIHX3 - TV.LOL|
TLE'CIT 112°80°L £ZV'LLT'L 6v8'155 (£29'¢S) 006'822 §26'10Z L SMOHS 2I8Nd TVLOL
c88'st £S6°VLL 9e8'0E1 vZe'es (s8t's) 00628 00002 v UBpIRD B BWOH
9LLT ws'le LiE've vyl (zse's) 0sz'1z 005'c 4 SMOYS dliand “osIN
(sov'2) 90565 10128 89£'2Z {290°2) 008°1LE 009°Z4 € UBUIOM
£s8'vl sLL'ee ozo'sy zse'st (9ze'1) 009°1LE oov've 9 smoys Guippem
ors'sl 865901 vee'azl 6£5'08 (958°v) 00L'vL 0002 v uopeasssy p spooo Gupiodg
zoL'zy 028'c6 zis'etl 89’6l (a2v'8) 0ov'ss 009°2} 8 SB21YBA [RUOREBIISY
120'st gev'es 605'89 808'92 (668'2) 009'vY 0002 v a3e3s3 |eay
{134 £28'0L el Z5t's (119} 006 005’ [4 Jshiy
(619's) zel'Le ees'ie azL'ol (e62) 002'Z1L 000'9 z ssjoh%00
\8v'L 9.Z'6y 15L'95 18p'ST (521'2) osv'ee 005°01 [+ Moys J1o9
859'LYy - 859°LY 956'L1 {sve't) 0s¢'sZ 000's ot abeioneg '@ pooy
(z19'1) §62'22 6290 9162 (s88) 0s9'ct 00s'c ¢ uonesnp3l
§25's sis'ov cvo'sy 11502 (s22'1) 00822 00£'6 ¢ MoyS 18D WOISND
158's £82'81 vEL'YT LeL's (£00°}) SZY'sk §20'c v ojes/moys yeso
00Z°Z) 8ve'1s1 sys‘col 064°L8 (ep2's) 005'VEL 005'2LL S Moys Jeog
s8L'} £55'881 8206} 1v8'96 (res's) 525001 000°ze 14 Bupyonsy g eagowoIny|
sPL2E szL'ol 0Lz'zy 16012 (212) 0s6'12 005‘s [+ Mmoyg enbruy|
z98'9 61L°LS 185'85 696'L2 (682°2) 006°Z¢ 000'c z SjuaAz Bupiodg|
8002 Ad 600Z Ad ewodu| awodu] awodu| esuepUSRY [CTTYF] STIVH NOLLIBIHX3
JONVRIVA IWOINI IWOONI Ksepipouy adjes leauay 300N
AN3A3 AIN3A3 800Z
600Z ‘of dung Surpay 1w0x [EISLY
Atemumg juaag

AUoYNY BUA y/UORUIAUC) Ajuno)) 3ud) - spidey puein
NE[] S0A2( - DINS



{ evesrr | 219085y [ 996'920°s [zee'ose'z  (z98'991) 000°208'Z 516'899 695 SONIQTING TV - V104
| s8s'sts | si8'svt’t | vov'ces’t | 266’882 (812°08) ST9'v68 001282 15¢ STIVH NOLLIGIHX3-NON - TV1OL|
202°95 186'62L £81'982 £95°95 (95£'02) 5.6'6¥S 009'c61 z51 TIVH 3DONVIWHOIYId SOA 30 - IVLOL
tov'y - vov'y [~{4 (got) 0052 00Z'z 3 woo/uoRenpeIS
£50'6 - £50'6 g6¢'e (z6t) 058's oov's z moys Ajwed
060°cH ov6'ag) 0£0°00Z 690'LS ti0's 056°2¢1 ooL'st 14 lleH 8dukuLIOpad SOABQ SNOBUE||SISIN
z09's §52'5C 158092 z88'vL (tov'zh) sic'g6l 00529 v5 AuoydwAsg spidey purig
916's 00£'vSL s1z'08lL 6668y (ee2'2) 0s6'8LL 008'zS -1 pling aneeyy Aempeoig
¥68°L1 svz'ey orL'vs mwr'oz (255°1) o0sz'se 000'8 9 spidey puess eiedo
t8L'9 ovZ'Le ¥Zy'L6 Sva'sy (zze'e) 00L°'LS 000'vL 1) s|jeg spidey puesd
88£°08 ve8'9lL TTTL6L vev'zsy (e98'62) 0S9'vvE 005°c6 66 "OSINMOOY ONLLIIWMWOONTVE IVLOL)
z89'VL 8vs'ysz 0£2'692 z61's8L (288°0) $Z6°06 ooL'sy (54 llews - 3enbueg woosjeg
916'59 s61°2¢ LLb'col 959'8¢ (ssv'v) 000'69 0052 [ abue - jenbueg wooljjeg
zaL's) zL'oL $56's2 0s2'sh (s82) 00s's 00L's ] soped/sbuippom
9888t 108°681 £69'922 865'22) (sst'vh) 0sz'sih 0010t szh sbuneaiy  suruiwes
(580°'2) $80°L - - - - - - 10028 yYSiH - sesueqg
sPL'e £09'9 spL'g o9L'y (e1£) 006’y 000°t z abeyj0) - seoueg
(a0t°9t) $28'0Z1 65E'Y8 68¢'LS (928't) 058'8Z 000'y 8 Kemwysieujwoes|
(T84 4Y) 090'v2 15919 85¢°sy (eci's) 14 1% 005 ] ojesodio)
(vz9'c) 8022k £85'8 cZLY (185) 0s8'y coc'z : DuORENpRID
- - . . - - - . 000°s 20pun sjenbueg
105’y £EC'Y v£8°'8 902y (zze) 056'y 00¢c'e € Bupsey
8002 Ad 6002 Ad ewodu] swoou| ewoou) @suepueny SjuoA3 STIVH NOLLIGINX3
IONVRIVA IWOINI 3WOONI Ketiouy LT Inusy JO0ON
AN3A3 AIN3A3 8002
600Z ‘0¢ dung Suipuy Jeax [EosLy
Arewng yusay

AJLOMNY BUAIY/E0BUIATOY) A3uno)) Judy - spidey pusis)
NElJ 50430 - DS



SMG - DeVos Place (Grand Center)

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Indirect Expense Summary

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009

Budget Estimate
F/Y 2009 F/Y 2008 Variance

Salaries - Full Time 1,563,225 1,464,158 (99,067)
Salaries Part Time 1,004,415 1,130,767 126,352
Auto Allowance 30,850 26,230 (4,620)
Payroll Taxes 312,021 300,075 (11,946)
Employee Benefits 222,447 195,160 (27,287)
Pension 66,106 47,183 (18,923)
Union Expenses 166,130 194,344 28,214
Allocated Salaries (1,405,355) (1,563,237) (157,882)

Total Labor Costs 1,959,839 1,794,680 (165,159)
Contracted Security 302,000 293,154 (8,846)
Meetings 38,000 28,876 9,124)
Meals & Entertainment 14,500 12,119 (2,381)
Dues & Subscriptions 3,600 5,622 2,022
Professional Fees 39,000 27,113 (11,887)
Employee Training 10,000 12,486 2,486
Printing 15,600 8,847 (6,753)
Advertising 60,000 45,331 (14,669)
Trash Removal 42,000 34,435 (7,565)
Landscaping 8,440 7,644 (796)
Armored Services 2,400 2,407 7
Exterminating 55,440 55,992 552
Cleaning 36,000 33,652 (2,348)
Repairs & Maintenance 503,291 462,463 (40,828)
Supplies 266,000 251,766 (14,234)
Corporate Travel 5,000 - (5,000)
Computer Expenses 75,000 65,744 (9,256)
Equipment Rental 12,000 11,984 (16)
Bank Service Charges 18,000 23,173 5,173
General Liability Insurance 115,733 117,019 1,286
Property Insurance 115,500 112,526 (2,974)
Insurance Expense 42,000 49,589 7,589
Printing & Stationary 11,000 1,558 (9,442)
Office Supplies 9,000 13,636 4,636
Postage 5,000 4,452 (548)
Parking Expense 18,000 28,001 10,001
Telephone 72,000 82,162 10,162
Utilities 1,626,200 1,629,307 3,107
Management Fee 157,899 153,300 (4,599)
Incentive Fee 0 - -
Allocated Expenses (22,000) (15,818) 6,182
Total Materials & Service 3,656,603 3,558,540 (98,063)
Total Indirect Expenses 5,616,442 5,353,220 (263,222)




SMG - Van Andel Arena / DeVos Place(Grand Center)
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Full Time Employee Summary & Allocation

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009

F/Y 2008 F/Y 2009

Position VAA DVP Total VAA DVP Total Change
General Manager 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Administrative Assistant 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Director of Finance 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Accounting Manager 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 -
Accounting Support 1.50 1.50 3.00 1.50 1.50 3.00 -
Box Office Manager 0.80 0.20 1.00 0.80 0.20 1.00 -
Assistant Box Office Manager 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 -
Premium Seat/Suite 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Box Office Support 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Director of Marketing 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Marketing Manager 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Marketing Support 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Group Sales Manager 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Assistant General Manager - Ops 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Director of Facilities 0.33 0.67 1.00 0.33 0.67 1.00 -
Maintenance Assistant 0.33 0.67 1.00 0.33 0.67 1.00 -
Maintenance Support 4.00 7.00 11.00 4.00 7.00 11.00 -
Operations Manager 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 -
Operations Support 9.00 8.00 17.00 9.00 8.00 17.00 -
MISAT - 1.00 1.00 1.00
Assistant General Manager - Sales - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 -
Director of Sales - 1.00 1.00 1.00
Sales Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 -
Sales Support - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 -
Director of Event Services - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 -
Event Coordinators 2.00 4.00 6.00 2.00 4.00 6.00 -
House Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 -
Receiptionist/Admin Support 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 -
Total 29.46 33.54 63.00 29.46  35.54 65.00 2.00



SMG - Van Andel Arena/ DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Calculation
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009

The management fee is broken up into two categories. The base fee and incentive fee.

With the new contract starting July 1, 2006, the base fee is $300,000 split evenly between
DeVos Place and Van Andel Arena. This fee is subject to an annual increase based
on the change in the CPI-U, with no increase in any given year to be greater than 3%.

The incentive fee is based on benchmarks for both Net Revenues above Expenses, as well
as, Total Gross Revenues. The Total Gross Revenue benchmarks are $4.6 million for Van
Andel Arena and $4.0 million for DeVos Place. The incentive fee is paid on all combined
revenues for both facilities in excess of the combined benchmarks. SMG is paid 25% of
the first $500,000, and 30% on excess above $500,000. At no point shall the incentive
fee paid to SMG exceed the initial base fee. Benchmark shall increase overall by
$100,000 per year.

SMG is entitled to the incentive fee as calculated above only if the combined Net Revenue
above Expenses for the facilities exceeds $700,000.

Below is the calculation for the Base and Incentive Fee's for F/Y 2009 compared to the
expected fee for F/Y 2008.

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2008
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,413,711 (378,977) 1,034,734 919,647
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,413,711 (378,977) 334,734 219,647
Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2008
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
Base Fee 157,899 157,899 315,798 306,600
Incentive Fee
Revenue 5,327,210 5,237,438 10,564,648 10,148,119
Benchmark Revenue 8,800,000 8,700,000
Projected Revenue Increas¢ 1,764,648 1,448,119
Increase below $500,000 25% 500,000 125,000 -
Increase above $500,000 30% 1,264,648 379,394 -
Total Incentive Fee 315,798 306,600
Total SMG Management Fee 157,899 157,899 631,596 613,200




Item IILb.iii.

VAN ANDEL
ARENA
VAN ANDEL ARENA
OPERATING BUDGET

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2009

***INCLUDES APRIL ROLLING FORECAST***

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An 5MG Managed Facllity



(oeL'18) r'ser't  LILEMYL  (998'CL) LY'THE 986'S01 0y’ sveThE 196'1S1 861’96z ov9'lel sEP'ZiL  POL'IOL  (SE'vl) (LS6'€ET) (SSO7) IWOONI ALITIOV4 13N
z'ee) ZTGL8'e  66Y'EIE'E  900'Z6Z  SOE'SLE IPB'0EE 8569  6VP'BGE  COB'YSE  GBO'SPE  9.6'8E€  6S6'VZE  I66'00€  0SZ'68Z  0SZ'86Z S3SNIJX3 LOIYIGNI TVLOL
¥es'ee ¥8P'SZY’L  0S9'COP'L  0S9'S8 6’80l 8LY'VC siz'ebl 98S'ShL  Obv'spL czrsel  €Lo'ell 965811 $€9'v6 188'28 18828 Qv3HI3A0
168'C wi'zy 958'6¢ pie'e Tee'e zee'e zee'e zee'e zee'e zze'e zee'e zee'e zze'e zze'e zze'e NIVMANIS
956'Z vsz'ozt 862'L11 eLL's SLL'6 SLL'6 6LL'6 SLL'8 SLL'6 GL2'8 GLL'6 SLL'6 SiL'6 SLL's SL1'6 ONLLY3S AUNXM
zoe'st 6EL'GEL Lozt 9e0'0L 1€0'04 L£0'0L L€0°0L LE0'0L 1€0'0L L£0'0L LE0'0} L€0'0L 1€0'0L LEO'0L LE0'0L 301440 X08
(L6t'68) POS'CLS’L  LOE'ELS'L  €l9'8ZL  B809'8ZL  809'8ZI 809'/€1 809'LEL 809'82L  ©09'8ZL 809'.EL 809°'8C1 809'82} 809'8Z} 809°LE1 SNOLLYH3d0
(zsi'e) 208'692 856'SLZ 118'2¢ 11822 14822 11822 (91274 1.8'2e 128'22 128'22 128'22 (91:¥4 11822 12822 ONLLINEYIN
(Zzi'vl) 6Ev'861 196'212 85'LL 685°21 685°LL 68521 680'6L 685'LL 68S'LL 685°LL 68521 685°LL 68524 68524 3ONVNIS
6¥5'2) &v6'89l e6v' 1L 1oLyl 0L'pL 191'vL 811 100'S1 81'vL 91'v1 I-Th 1% 1911 19t'pL 90L'y1 81'p1 IALLNOIXS
SISNIdX3 LOIHIANI
(est'er) €99'04€'S  OLZ'[2L'S OvL'6LZ  28L'IZvy  l28'0tF  S00'SZ9 169'LLy  OLL'90S  €8Z'109  Z29'0ES 16€'LEY LoL'2ob  €6Z'vic  €6T'viT IWOONI SSOYD a3Lsnrav
(gzv'st) 8Zy'89v'e  0000SYP'Z  €9Lp0Z  ZOL'WOZ  ZOL'VOZ  LSL'POZ  LOL'WOZ  L9V'POT  I9L'WOZ  L9V'WOZ  LOM'WOC  [SL'POZT ISL'VOT 191'%02 IWOONI YIHLO TV1IOL
£L'e 188'LY 00005 €L’y 091y 91"y 091't 01 91y 91y 91y 91 091'y 9t'y 91 AWOONI SNOINVTIIOSIN
19£'02 6E9'v8P 000'505 180'2h £€80'ZY £80'2y £80'Z0 £80'2F £80'ZH £80'ZP €80°2Y £80°2y £80'CP €80°2h £€80'2Y SSALLNIONI LINMOIL
008'0L 002'v9 000'sL 0sT'9 0s2'9 052'9 0sz'e 052’9 052'9 0se's 0sz'9 052’9 052’9 0529 052’9 3WOONI 1S3HTINI
GLE01 629'609 000'029 £99°'LS 199'lS 299'tS 199°1S 299'1S 199'\S 189'1S 189°1S 199'15 199'1S 189'15 20916 ONISILY3AQY ININVINEAJ
(£20'29) 220'292'y  000'002'F  000'00L  000'00L  000'COt 000'0014 000'00L  0C0'00L  000'COL 000001 00000 000'00L 000’001 000'001 ONILY3S A¥NXN1
INODINI ONILYHIO ¥3HLO
(520's2) SE2'206'C  OLZ'l/8C  Ll6'ML G19'€2¢  099'7€2 868’02y  0E£6'282  £09'20€  OLL'Z6E  GSP'OZE  OE2'EEZ  VE6'LST  9ZI'OL 9ZL'0L ANOONI LNIA3 VL0L
zE6'TYL 180'sSh'L  610'865°L  986'LE zoe'soL  ses'szl $26'862  6¥9'GSL  £.9'88L 820'202  805'Z8l LrL'get 168'6EL  8G9'EE 869'€E IWOONI AYYTIIONY TV10L
(ree's) ov9'oP 218'le 829'L 8z9't eel 88l'L osz'y 058'c 00L'L 029 olg't (o3 - - ay¥v0o8 03GIA
s6L'sp 0v0'soe GEZ'PST 0058 005°6Z 0s2'ie [or4:374 00Z'L2 SeY've ole've 022’8z 090'02 05622 00s'8 005'8 S3ILI3AON
z89'62 SLL'66 L6E'6C) 865'S veeLL y7i% 4} 18p'61 60L'El 869'6 898°'S1 8zo'vh L9E'LE 1896 868°C 868'Z ONRIZLYD
688'2L 989'60L'L  S.5°Z8L't  092'CZ 082'99 020's6 GE8'00Z  06¥'0L)  00L'OvE 0025t ovo'LEL o16'l0L  0zZ8'CoL 092'22 09z'22 SNOISS3ONOD
INODNI AUVTHONY
(L86'291) syL'ibb'L  L6L'6lZ'l  166'6E EIE'BLL  SL0'W0L  ¥I6'IOL 188°LLL  OE6'ELL 8€0°661 Ly6'evL £80°'86 €80'22t eov'ee 80b°9E JWOONI LNIAT £03310 TWLOL
(602'tvL) (6oZ'vrL)  (609'vL)  (8L°6) (czr'es)  (988'022) (6bi'Oow)  (o5'zz))  (2o6'se)  (est've)  (ZLbie)  (216'99) 866'C 896'C JWOONI 3DIAS3S
00b'€20'C 00b'€20'C  009°LS ooL'vey 008091  008'Z8E  000'ZSE 005'86Z  000'v6Z  OO¥'8€Z  00Z'6ZI 000'68F  00S'CE 00s'ze AN3Y
IWOONI IN3A3 L03MI
L0€'S £69'099 000'999 000'¥Z 000'cY 000'SL 005'SZH 00525 000'69 000°€01 000'02 000' ¥ 000'LP 000'8 000'g IONVANILLY
- 8Ll :1¥% € 9 zl 4 ot 13 8l et 9 2t 1 } SIONVINYOAHIL/SAVA INSAS
WA IOVIS3 1I35and NNP AV Hdv HYW 834 NV o3a AON 190 d3s ony ane
800Z Ad 6002 Ad
6007 ‘0€ unf 3uipuy JwdX [EI6LY
sY31q31H 193png

Auogny Bnaay/UoRuIAU0Y) AuNo)) yud)y - spidey purin

¥IRIY PPUY WBA - DS



|{s20’s2) 6£2'206'Z 012'228'T Zi8°le SEZ'PSe 268621 525281 (60Z'tPL) 00v°'€20'2 000'999 [T} JVLOL GNVHD)|
|leze'so) £PI'68) 2660 - - 0S0°F - Zv6'y 000'sE 000°0¢ ] SNONVTIIOSIN TYLOL
822'8L - - - - - - - - - u..es..__oon:_
(801'sS) 804'sS - - - - - - - - - snoiBijey
(s18'v1) 108'ss zee'op . - 090's - e’y 000's¢ 000°0¢ 9 uopenpeid) ebeyjod)
16020 +90'955'} [ {000'2) oce'all S01'S9 082'06% 810°09 000's18 000'884 3 SLY3INOD TYLOL
(6v1'as1) evi‘osli - - - - - - - - - uBRSBYD
(9gZ'cet) 952'e8e - - - - - - - - - Agunod)
206985 659'010°1 195'c09°t (000°2) 0c9'aLt S01°e9 742 200°09 000518 000'881 £z #50y
ssi'6Ll 1£0'6bY 261828 (000'c) 518°29 L02'Z) 062'282 {099'c22) 008'1¥S 000'sS1 [ SMOHS AWV TVLOL
evL'ioL S1Z°1Z 896'Z81 oot 00eze 082'c 06¥°0L (z1o'62} 000°sSH 005'sH [ moyg Auey snosueljeos|iy
(010°s) Zv8LL ze8'2L (4 0s6's s9g’t o¥r'sz (e2e'12) 000'49 000"t z S49PRY [ing [UOISSaj0Id
£68'E - c6s'se {oog't) osZ'y 525 00s'9Z (zeg'cZ) ooo‘ot 0000} z £80420301 0jA)s00ud|
698'0L 97y 9ls'ss - $16'2 [14] ost've {rev'ez) 000'sy 000°Z1L £ ssosdeuY|
- - - - - - - - - - - 0BpOY s2U0Ig pue Sling
(c98‘it) ezz'ezt 09¢'96 - 00zZ'olL oL's osv'ey {o22'82) 000°02 000'0Z 14 S9N seisuop
626 cio'se Zrs'se - ooz zL9 193 5291 000'sZ 00s's 3 89} uo TS
L8's 91879 £sv's9 - - s.8't 094'8E (z8z'9g) 000's9 0002 1 8] uo Aeusiq
2982 82v'0t 06L'Z¢ - 00b's 1% SLzT's (oov’s} 009°22 000°S 3 S4a31046G01D WopeH
(s9's) £6v°05 eve'vy - - 0zsz 098'z¢ (zes'es) 000°c9 000°0Z 8 sioutosg BupiBuny
(925°c01) 166'20L S9v'p09 Z18'9t 08L'v) S6%'7S 900'b0¥ (2£9'5¢8) 006°1£9 000°§6Z £ S1¥0dS TV.LOL
- - - - - - - - - - - epeyseg 8694100
Le9'01 £06°2 009°c} - - 0Kz ovz'y {oss'z2) 000°Z¢ 000 3 lieqieyses [00ydS YGIH
(819°28) 819'2p - - - - - - - - - UORIGIYX3 (leiaxnsed
(gs1's2) 669°Z41 1928 - 0592 sl SL9'vL 666"y} 000°0¢ 000's 3 Sumpsaim [euoissajold|
- - . . - - - - - - - VENM)
(286°5) 162'89 0le28 {o0s) 090°s [ x4 06e'ce (os0'v8) 008°28 00001 3 uoseesald VAN
05229 - 08229 - 080'y osi'e 008'1¢ {o0e'02) ooo‘cot 00021 z Jusweino}, Ae)20H YYON
(g68'v) 662'vZ vov'sl Zi8's - 008'0} - (soe'v2) oov'sL 000'v9 8 uoseos Jepnboy ebedwey|
. - - - - - - - - - - spoheid sugsuo
(562'ch) SL4'T9Y 088°80% 008°0¢ - 080°'st 000‘0z¢ {oo0‘cee} 000'95E 000°002 ov uosees JeinBoy SUHD
8002 A< 600Z Ad aWooU] ‘ewoou] ] swodu| eJuRpUSlY  SWeAl 3dAL LNIA3
IONVRIVA 3WOONI SWOONI pieog 0OPIA AjjaaoN Bup adjes Ruey 0N
AN3A3 AN3A3 8002
6002 ‘0 sunr Bujpu3 Jeo, 1essid
Arewiing Jusag
Apowpny suesy / 0 Awmo) jusy) - spidey pueio

BUBSY [9pUY UBA - ONS



SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Indirect Expense Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009

Budget Estimate
F/Y 2009 F/Y 2008 Variance
Salaries 1,238,542 1,225,978 (12,564)
Salaries Part - Time 590,000 597,227 7,227
Auto Allowance 11,825 10,725 (1,100)
Payroll Taxes 206,369 210,139 3,770
Employee Benefits 205,525 188,360 (17,165)
Pension 48,229 37,098 (11,131)
Union Expenses 48,889 39,599 (9,290)
Allocated Salaries (875,886) (909,678) (33,792)
Total Labor Costs 1,473,493 1,399,448 (74,045)
Contracted Security 252,000 252,919 919
Contracted Cleaning 30,000 28,676 (1,324)
Meetings 11,700 10,383 (1,317)
Meals & Entertainment 10,300 21,027 10,727
Dues & Subscriptions 2,500 8,471 5,971
Professional Fees 62,500 38,305 (24,195)
Employee Training 9,000 5,623 3,377)
Printing 8,000 6,052 (1,948)
Adbvertising 75,000 70,568 (4,432)
Trash Removal 18,000 22,637 4,637
Landscaping 5,800 2,484 (3,316)
Armored Services 3,600 3,910 310
Exterminating 3,600 2,970 (630)
Cleaning 28,800 18,890 (9,910)
Repairs & Maintenance 248,000 270,535 22,535
Supplies 220,100 219,079 (1,021)
Corporate Travel 7,500 - (7,500)
Computer Expenses 65,000 71,894 6,894
Marketing Fund 38,000 45,482 7,482
Equipment Rental 15,000 13,379 (1,621)
Bank Service Charges 9,000 9,041 41
General Liability Insurance 115,219 116,959 1,740
Property Insurance 32,000 29,669 (2,331)
Insurance Expense 43,132 36,529 (6,603)
Printing & Stationary 11,000 10,971 (29)
Office Supplies 12,000 15,154 3,154
Postage 12,000 11,899 (1o1)
Parking Expense 24,000 26,955 2,955
Telephone 84,000 78,424 (5,576)
Utilities 865,200 912,648 47,448
Management Fee 157,899 153,300 (4,599)
Incentive Fee 0 - -
Amortization 0 - -
Allocated Expenses (39,844) (39,059) 785
Total Materials & Service 2,440,006 2,475,774 35,768
Total Indirect Expenses 3,913,499 3,875,222 (38,277)




SMG - Van Andel Arena / DeVos Place(Grand Center)
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Full Time Employee Summary & Allocation

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009

F/Y 2008 F/Y 2009

Position VAA DVP Total VAA DVP Total Change
General Manager 0.50  0.50 1.00 0.50  0.50 1.00 -
Administrative Assistant 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Director of Finance 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Accounting Manager 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 -
Accounting Support 1.50 1.50 3.00 1.50 1.50 3.00 -
Box Office Manager 0.80 0.20 1.00 0.80 0.20 1.00 -
Assistant Box Office Manager 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 -
Premium Seat/Suite 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Box Office Support 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Director of Marketing 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Marketing Manager 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Marketing Support 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Group Sales Manager 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Assistant General Manager - Ops 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Director of Facilities 0.33 0.67 1.00 0.33 0.67 1.00 -
Maintenance Assistant 0.33 0.67 1.00 0.33 0.67 1.00 -
Maintenance Support 4.00 7.00 11.00 4.00 7.00 11.00 -
Operations Manager 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 -
Operations Support 9.00 8.00 17.00 9.00 8.00 17.00 -
MISAT - 1.00 1.00 1.00
Assistant General Manager - Sales - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 -
Director of Sales - 1.00 1.00 1.00
Sales Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 -
Sales Support - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 -
Director of Event Services - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 -
Event Coordinators 2.00 4,00 6.00 2.00 4.00 6.00 -
House Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 -
Receiptionist/Admin Support 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 -
Total 29.46  33.54 63.00 29.46 3554 65.00 2.00



SMG - Van Andel Arena / DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Calculation
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009

The management fee is broken up into two categories. The base fee and incentive fee.

With the new contract starting July 1, 2006, the base fee is $300,000 split evenly between
DeVos Place and Van Andel Arena. This fee is subject to an annual increase based
on the change in the CPI-U, with no increase in any given year to be greater than 3%.

The incentive fee is based on benchmarks for both Net Revenues above Expenses, as well
as, Total Gross Revenues. The Total Gross Revenue benchmarks are $4.6 million for Van
Andel Arena and $4.0 million for DeVos Place. The incentive fee is paid on all combined
revenues for both facilities in excess of the combined benchmarks. SMG is paid 25% of
the first $500,000, and 30% on excess above $500,000. At no point shall the incentive
fee paid to SMG exceed the initial base fee. Benchmark shall increase overall by
$100,000 per year.

SMG is entitled to the incentive fee as calculated above only if the combined Net Revenue

above Expenses for the facilities exceeds $700,000.

Below is the calculation for the Base and Incentive Fee's for F/Y 2009 compared to the

expected fee for F/Y 2008,

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2008
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,413,711 (378,977) 1,034,734 919,647
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,413,711 (378,977) 334,734 219,647
Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2008
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
Base Fee 157,899 157,899 315,798 306,600
Incentive Fee
Revenue 5,327,210 5,237,438 10,564,648 10,148,119
Benchmark Revenue 8,800,000 8,700,000
Projected Revenue Increase 1,764,648 1,448,119
Increase below $500,000 25% 500,000 125,000 -
Increase above $500,000 30% 1,264,648 379,394 -
Total Incentive Fee 315,798 306,600
Total SMG Management Fee 157,899 157,899 631,596 613,200




| Item V
GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

Memorandum

To: CAA Finance Committee

From: Robert J. White, Kent County Fiscal Services Director

Date: June 10, 2008

Re: Convention/Arena Authority (CAA)

Fiscal Year 2009 Budget Request

Convention
Arena
Authority The attached material summarizes a requested CAA Administrative Operating Budget and

Consolidated Income Statement for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2008 (Fiscal Year

Steven Heacock,

Chairman
Birgit Klohs
Clif Charles
Gary Mclnerney
George Heartwell
Joseph Tomaselli

Lew Chamberlin

2009). The format of the report provides the Committee with an overview of Fiscal Year
2007 actual, Fiscal Year 2008 estimate, and Fiscal Year 2009 preliminary
recommendations. Final Finance Committee review is scheduled for June 19th with full
Board approval anticipated on June 25th.

Table A provides a summary of the facility manager (SMG) budget documents submitted
under separate cover. This summary notes an original budgeted net operating income for

Fiscal Year 2008 of $541,329. Based on SMG’s most recent “budget roll,” the current
year forecast has been updated to a net operating income balance of $613,077. Note
should be made, at this time, that SMG forecasts current year (FY 2008) spending in
excess of previously authorized budget for the Van Andel Arena®. Recognition and
authorization of the anticipated budgetary overrun should be acknowledged prior to close-
out of the current fiscal year accounting.

The Fiscal Year 2009 consolidated income statement (Table C) forecasts a net operating
income totaling $808,662. This income will be applied to finance, in part, a capital outlay
request totaling $1,844,100. The balance of the funds requested will be drawn from the
capital reserve account.

Table B provides a summary of the CAA administrative budget. Revenues in this account
include regularly scheduled transfers from the facility manager, parking, interest and other
miscellaneous contributions to the organization. Expenditures from this fund include

VAN ANDEL

ARENA

| p B =2 VA ) Pl !s ‘:E

DeVos Places

303 Monroe Ave. NW

Grand Rapids, M| 49503-2233
616.742.6500

Fax 616.742.6590

Van Ande! Arenas®

130 Fulton West

Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2601
616.742.6600

Fax 616.742.6197



provision for utilities, capital repair/replacement/improvement (as defined in the SMG
management contract), parking management fees, landscape plantings (new), and other
administrative expenses. Table B-1, attached hereto, provides additional details
concerning utility and miscellaneous administrative expenditure accounts.

Table C provides a “Consolidated Income Statement” for the CAA covering Fiscal Years
ending June 30, 2007 through 2009. The Fiscal Year 2008 budget, as originally approved,
forecasted net income of $820,537. This forecasted income has been revised to a total
adjusted balance, for the current fiscal year, of approximately $1,447,430. The income
forecast was increased by higher than expected event revenue at the Van Andel Arena®
and deferral of two budgeted capital projects to the following fiscal year. Revenue
forecasts and appropriation requests for the Fiscal Year 2009 budget disclose a net loss of
($213,438). This net loss is a significant reduction from prior year performance, primarily
based on an increase in new capital spending.

On the basis of these initial budgetary estimates, it is expected that the CAA will close its
Fiscal Year 2008 activities with a “fund balance” approximating $22.8 million. This
would include a recommended minimum operating reserve balance of $6 million and a
capital repair/replacement/improvement reserve of $16.8 million.

Table D provides an updated forecast of balances anticipated to be available in the
“capital repair/replacement/improvement” account. The forecast covers a ten-year time
period. The capital outlay requirements forecast is based on a comprehensive study
commissioned by the Finance Committee Chair. The committee constituted for the
purpose of review and recommending capital projects included Rich MacKeigan — SMG,
Jim Watt — SMG, and Robert Mihos — County Facilities Director. The summary table was
taken from the final capital replacement/improvement report and updated to include
estimates concerning future net operating income and interest earnings.

Rich MacKeigan, Sue Waddell, and I participated in preparation of the attached
recommended budget. We would expect to present this to the Finance Committee, at its
June meeting, and be prepared to answer any additional questions which may arise from a
review of this material.

Attachments: FY 2009 Budget
FY 2009 Capital Request Details



Table A
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
SMG Facilities Budget
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2008 and 2009

FY2009

Requested

5,327,210
(3,755,600)
(157,899)

1,413,711

5,237,466
(5,458,543)
(157,899)

FY2008
Budget Estimate
Van Andel Arena
Operating - Revenues $ 5,146,235 $ 5,370,663
- Expenses - Facilities (3,622,718) (3,721,922)
- Base Management Fees (153,300) (153,300)
Net Operating Income § 1,370,217 § 1,495,441
DeVos Place
Operating - Revenues $ 4,831,438 $ 4,777,456
- Expenses - Facilities (5,200,426) (5,199,920)
- Base Management Fees (153,300) (153,300)
Net Operating Loss $ (522,288) $ (575,764)
Net Available to CAA:

Van Andel Arena $ 1,370,217 $ 1,495,441
DeVos Place (522,288) (575,764)
Less - SMG Incentive (306,600) (306,600)

- DeVos Parking Maintenance 0 0

&

(378,976)

$ 541,329 $ 613,077

1,413,711
(378,976)
(315,798)

(25,000)

693,937




Revenues:

Facility Operations

Utility Reimbursement

Transfers from SMG

DeVos Place Parking
VanAndel Parking
Interest
Contributions
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Utilities

Parking Management
Pedestrian Safety
Landscaping
Administration
Capital

Total Expenditures

Net Excess (Deficit)

Notes: See Following

Table B

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Administrative - Operating / Capital Replacement Budget

FY2009 Recommendation
FY2007 FY2008 FY2009
Budget Estimate Actual Budget Estimate Recommendation
$ 422,705 $§ 720,560 $ 901,436 $ 541,329 $ 613,077 $ 693,937
2,445.304 2,488,398 2,503,599 2,457,000 2,241,955 2,491,400
2,868,009 3,208,958 3,405,035 2,998,329 2,855,032 3,185,337
734,565 867,300 900,256 862,912 883,300 928,200 ©
154,601 126,854 123,871 126,408 128,116 141,216 @
785,000 986,000 1,069,805 1,000,000 967,500 742,000 @
0 0 0 0 0 0
15,000 0 0 80,000 80,000 80,000 @
4,557,175 5,189,112 5,498,967 5,067,649 4,913,948 5,076,753
2,445,304 2,488,398 2,503,599 2,457,000 2,241,955 2,491,400
337,232 336,881 348,896 365,243 314,836 281,495
80,000 85,000 83,781 90,000 90,000 87,234
0 0 0 0 0 120,000
279,529 326,755 311,052 451,653 408,772 465,962
3,175,230 2,727,987 1,696,061 883,216 410,955 1,844,100 @
6,317,295 5,965,021 4,943,389 4,247,112 3,466,518 5,290,191
$(1,760,120) $ (775,909) $ 555,578 $ 820,537 $ 1,447,430 $ (213,438)




Table B
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Administrative - Operating / Capital Replacement Budget

FY2009 Recommendation

Notes:

(UDeVos Place Parking Rates: FY 2008 FY 2009
30 Minutes h) 1.00 $ 1.10
Daily Maximum _ 9.00 10.00
Event 6.50 7.00
Monthly -Public 139.00 142.50

-County/SMG (O+M) 47.00 40.00

Van Andel Arena Parking Rates:
Event $ 7.00 $ 8.00
Monthly -Public 63.75 65.25

@$21.2 million in investment funds at 3.5%.

3)

Lease Agreement with Rampage states: "... Tenant agrees to fund during such Renewal Terms a contribution

of ten thousan dollars ($10,000.00) per Home Game to the Arena's capital reserve fund."

@ FY 2008 Carryover Projects:
Removable Seating VAA b 300,000
Fall Arrest System VAA 60,000
360,000
FY 2009 Eligible Projects:

Theater concrete repair DVP § 65,000
WI F1 equipment upgrades DVP 50,000
Public circulation furniture DVP 30,000
Snow melt system DVP 170,000
Theater fire curtain DVP 250,000
Theater lighting instrumetns DVP 50,000
Upgrade telecom system 90,000
Total DVP Request 705,000
Variable frequency drives VAA 30,000
NW concourse expansion VAA 450,000
Security concourse cameras VAA 50,000
Ice edger VAA 8,000
Upper bowl curtain system VAA 225,000
Total VAA Request 763,000
Smallwares F&B 6,000
POS terminal F&B 1,500
2 thermal printers F&B 1,600
Uniforms F&B 1,500
Radios F&B 5,000
Concession table drapes F&B 500
Total F&B Request 16,100

$ 1,844,100




Utilities:
Electricity
Steam/Gas
Water/Sewer

Wages

Benefits
Accounting/Audit
Legal Services
DID Assessment
Insurance
Meetings/Supplies
Marketing - CVB

Marketing - Sports Commission

Repairs - F&B
Diversity Initiative
Other

Notes:

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Table B-1

Detail of Expenditure Estimates

FY2009 Recommendation

FY2007 FY2008 FY2009
Budget Estimate Actual Budget Estimate Recommendation
$ 1,194,000 $ 1,230,104 $ 1,223,427 $ 1,232,000 $ 1,273,427 $ 1,232,000
1,127,500 1,160,911 891,631 1,112,500 1,141,631 1,146,900
123,800 97,383 126,897 112,500 126,897 112,500
$ 2,445,300 $ 2,488,398 $ 2,241,955 $ 2,457,000 $ 2,541,955 $ 2,491,400
$ 58,803 $ 83,803 $ 69,647 $ 85,567 $ 65,567 @ § 68,595
21,067 19,794 21,527 19,515 18,679 20,467
26,000 28,162 27,730 30,000 36,917 38,000
30,000 30,000 24,242 35,000 30,000 35,000
49,659 50,299 50,299 51,071 51,351 52,900
20,000 19,197 19,197 21,000 20,258 22,000
14,000 14,000 12,623 15,000 3,000 15,000
50,000 0 0 75,000 75,000 75,000
0 0 0 25,000 25,000 25,000
0 55,000 52,993 35,000 41,000 45,000
0 16,500 16,146 22,000 @ 22,000 29,000
10,000 10,000 16,648 37,500 20,000 40,000
$ 279,529 326,755 311,052 451,653 408,772 465,962

Mpowntown Improvement District special assessment contribution from CAA based on benefit atlocation formula.

@FY 2009 budget recommendation anticipates continuing requirement for consulting assistance.

©)$22,000 @ 9 mos.

“Net of $20,000 per annum paid by Kent County Parks Foundtion for administrative services.



Operating Revenue:
Event - VanAndel Arena
- DeVos Place
Ancillary - VanAndel Arena
- DeVos Place
Other - VanAndel Arena
- DeVos Place

- Parking

Operating Expense / Appropriations:
Facility Operations

- VanAndel Arena

- DeVos Place

- Management

- Parking Maintenance
Administrative
Parking
Landscaping

Pedestrian Safety

Operating Income

Non-Operating Revenue!"

Interest and Miscellaneous

Transfer (to) from Capital Acct.

Net Income (Loss)
Fund Balance, beg. of yr.
Fund Balance, end of yr.

Notes:
0]

Table C

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Consolidated Income Statement
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2007-2009

FY2007 FY2008 FY2009
Budget Estimate Actual Budget Estimate Recommendation
$ 1,284,116 $ 1,479,937 $ 1,524,339 § 1,183,931 §$ 1,447,148  § 1,279,191
2,323,417 2,443,692 2,459,924 2,541,693 2,513,080 2,640,634
1,456,159 1,588,165 1,647,869 1,567,304 1,455,087 1,598,019
2,007,628 2,011,993 2,160,615 2,060,745 2,067,598 2,386,332
2,240,000 2,295,474 2,506,635 2,395,000 2,468,428 2,450,000
231,000 228,379 239,559 229,000 196,778 210,500
889,166 994,154 1,024,127 989,320 1,011,416 1,069,416
10,431,486 11,041,794 11,563,068 10,966,993 11,159,535 11,634,092
3,424,232 3,578,865 3,625,769 3,622,718 3,721,922 3,755,600
5,137,687 5,148,215 5,110,799 5,200,426 5,199,920 5,458,543
557,696 600,000 600,000 613,200 613,200 631,596
0 0 0 0 0 25,000
279,529 326,755 311,052 451,653 408,772 465,962
337,232 336,881 348,896 365,243 314,836 281,495
0 0 0 0 0 120,000
80,000 85,000 83,781 90,000 90,000 87,234
9,816,376 10,075,716 10,080,297 10,343,240 10,348,650 10,825,430
615,110 966,078 1,482,771 623,753 810,885 808,662
0 0 0 80,000 80,000 80,000
800,000 986,000 1,069,805 1,000,000 967,500 742,000
(3,175,230) (2,727,987) (1,996,998) (883,216) (410,955) (1,844,100)
(1,760,120) (775,909) 555,578 820,537 1,447,430 (213,438)
20,844,355 20,844,355 20,844,355 21,399,933 21,399,933 22,847,363
$ 19,084,235 $ 20,068,446 $ 21,399,933 § 22,220,470 $§ 22,847,363 § 22,633,925

Lease Agreement with Rampage states:

($10,000.00) per Home Game to the Arena's capital reserve fund."

"... Tenant agrees to fund during such Renewal Terms a contribution of ten thousand dollars



Table D

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Capital Repair/Replacement/Improvement Reserve
Projection of Receipts, Disbursements and Balances

Fiscal Year Net Operating Year End
Ending 6/30 Income'” Interest” Disbursements™ Balance'
2006 $ 14,844,355
2007 (Audit) 817,523 1,069,805 (1,331,750) $ 15,399,933
2008 (Est.) 890,885 967,500 (410,955) $ 16,847,363
2009 (Request) 888,662 742,000 (1,844,100) $ 16,633,925
2010 800,000 665,000 (716,900) $ 17,382,025
2011 800,000 695,000 (738,400) $ 18,138,625
2012 800,000 726,000 (760,500) $ 18,904,125
2013 800,000 756,000 (783,400) $ 19,676,725
2014 800,000 787,000 (806,900) $ 20,456,825
2015 900,000 818,000 (2,881,200) $ 19,293,625
2016 900,000 772,000 (2,967,700) $ 17,997,925
2017 900,000 720,000 (3,056,700) $ 16,561,225
2018 900,000 662,000 (3,148,400) $ 14,974,825
2019 900,000 599,000 (3,242,900) $ 13,230,925
Notes:

(ONet operating income, before depreciation, plus $80,000 annual Rampage capital

contribution, including Van Andel Arena, DeVos Place Convention Center,

Parking and Administration. Assumes continuation of current entertainment/business environment.

@Interest - Actual FY 2007, budget estimates in FY 2008 & FY 2009, 4% per annum (on balance,
beginning plus $6 million operating reserve) FY 2009-2019.

®)Capital project list at May 7, 2008 (current pricing), FY 2010 through FY 2019, indexed at 3% per annum.

®Excluding operating reserve balance of $6 million.



VAN ANDEL ARENA/DE VOS PLACE

CAPITAL YE 2009 NOTES
June 9, 2008
VAN ANDEL ARENA
ITEM BUDGET

Variable frequency drives $ 30,000.00

NW Concourse expansion $ 450,000.00

Security Concourse cameras $ 50,000.00

Ice edger $ 8,000.00

Upper bowl curtain system $225,000.00 $ 763,000.00

DE VOS PLACE

Theater concrete repair $ 65,000.00

WI Fl Equipment upgrades $ 50,000.00

Public circulation furniture $ 30,000.00

Snow Melt system $ 170,000.00

Theater fire curtain $ 250,000.00

Theater lighting instruments $ 50,000.00

Upgrade Telecom system $ 90,000.00 $ 705,000.00
2008 CARRYOVER

Theater Fall Arrest System $ 60,000.00

VAA Removable Seating $ 300,000.00 $ 360,000.00

TOTAL COMBINED BUDGET YE 2009 $1,828,000.00

VAN ANDEL ARENA: $763,000

1. VARIABLE FREQUENCY DRIVES $30,000 (VFDs)—Addition of VFDs to
9 pumps and fans primarily related to the ice plant. These drives provide the
greatest possible energy savings to motors of this type. VFDs provide soft-
start capabilities, which decreases electrical stresses and line voltage sags
associated with full voltage motor start-ups. The applied frequency and
voltage are increased at a controlled rate, or ramped up, without drawing
excessive current.

Energy savings payback ranges from 8 months to 42 months depending on the
individual motor with the shorter time frame relating to the 4 largest motors.
Total payback for this project should be well under two years.



Figure 1

2. NW CONCOURSE EXPANSION $450,000—Expand NW concourse area by

2,000+sf to relieve congestion on larger attended events and improve
merchandise and food & beverage sales area.

Heavy congestion in this area caused by opposing traffic flows from Skywalk
entrance and main entrance crossing lines for main womens restroom and
merchandise stands. Figure 1 below is current congested area. Attachment A
shows proposed expansion.

I | o o) =
- Womens ; .
Skyway Rest room | l
NTYRr—1 | Ol 8 2
Merch area

congestion

3. SECURITY CONCOURSE CAMERAS $50,000--Addition of 7 security

cameras and related recording/controls for arena east and west concourse.
Currently no security cameras in these areas.

. ICE EDGER $8,000—Replacement equipment for ice maintenance.

. UPPER BOWL CURTAIN $225,000—Blackout curtain and associated

rigging/controls to drape off upper bowl. Provides the ability to book events
requiring smaller seating capacity by making the facility appear smaller with
quantities of unsold seating not visible.



DE VOS PLACE: $705,000

1.

THEATER CONCRETE REPAIR $65,000—Repairs to structural concrete
where high rigging steel connects. Over the years expansion/contraction have
caused concrete to crack and spaul. This project removes existing concrete,
reinstalls bearing plates and fills area with non-shrink grout. Budget includes
repairs, engineering fees, contingencies. Figures 2-4 below are examples of
damaged areas.

Figure 2



Figure 3



11/21/2007

il

Figure 4
2. WIFI EQUIPMENT UPGRADES $50,000—Current system designed to
handel about 100 users at the same time throughout the facility. Experience is
showing demand for wireless is increasing as well as in much higher densities
ie meeting in a single room requiring 50 users. Also upgrades original
802.11b platform to 802.11a and 802.11g, the most current standards.

3. PUBLIC CIRCULATION FURNITURE $30,000—New lounge type
furniture for heavy traffic areas along the Skyway for rest/lounge areas; large
open area coming from Amway Hotel into DeVos Place, Skyway at the turn
by administrative offices, River Overlook area at top of west escalators.



Apr 17,2008 | 1:15pm | C:CDocuments ond SettingsCkiroemthly DocumentsCrowingt.dwg

T N

8
A 22w o\
b §= QO LN\

o

= 0

=3

8deld soAed -ONS

se38dg uedQ 40} sEEpP] UMY

&nS

G |
£ % 4
a:) )
/ /'/

4, SNOW MELT MONROE AVE—Current snow melt system on Monroe Ave.
extends from main Grand Gallery entrance to south edge of De Vos
Performance Hall. Effectively only covers the main entrance areas.

A. $170,000—Addition of snow melt system on Monroe Ave from south
edge of De Vos Performance Hall south to property line of River City



Building at 201 Monroe. This assumes current refurbishment of Ricer
City Bldg will include snow melt.

5. THEATER FIRE CURTAIN $250,000—This project was in last years budget
at $115,000. Increases attributed to code requirements which will require a
dramatically heavier curtain, in turn requiring additional steel, supports, and
rigging. In addition lead time increased to over 20 weeks. This project needs
to be re-bid entirely.

6. THEATER LIGHTING INSTRUMENTS $50,000—Upgrade theatrical
lighting control system and software with addition of new theatrical lighting
instruments. Will provide more flexible theatrical lighting for local Arts
organizations as well as a number of touring attractions.

7. UPGRADES TO NORTEL TELECOM SYSTEM $90,000—Software and
hardware upgrades to existing telecom system for both Van Andel Arena and
De Vos Place. These upgrades are required by manufacturer to continue
software system support. As we review the requirements we will be analyzing
the number of ports we currently have to the actual use in an effort to reduce
the total cost of this upgrade.



Convention
Arena

Authority

Steven Heacock,
Chairman

Birgit Klohs

Clif Charles

Gary Mclnerney

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli

Llew Chamberlin

“vaN ANDEL §
ARENA

Van Andel Arenas®

130 Fulton West

Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2601
616.742.6600

Fax 616.742.6197 Fax

GRAND RAT COUNTY
R e

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. CONVENTION, SHOW & SPORITS FACILITIES

Memorandum
To: CAA Operations Committee Members
From: Susan Waddell, Administrative Manager
Date: June 19, 2008
Re: DeVos Place® Art Location Opportunities

Per the CAA Operations Committee meeting yesterday, enclosed is the schematic
prepared by Phil Lundwall of Progressive AE showing potential locations for artwork
installation.

Please contact me if you have any questions or would like additional information. My
telephone number is 742-6594 and my e-mail address is: swaddell@smggr.com. Thank
you.

Have a great summer! See you in August.

DEVOSPLACE

DeVos Place®
303 Monroe Ave. NW

Grand Rapids, M| 49503-2233
616.742.6500

616.742.6590




VAN ANDEL ARENA/DE VOS PLACE

CAPITAL YE 2009 NOTES
June 9, 2008
VAN ANDEL ARENA
ITEM BUDGET

Variable frequency drives $ 30,000.00

NW Concourse expansion $ 450,000.00

Security Concourse cameras $ 50,000.00

Ice edger $ 8,000.00

Upper bowl curtain system $225,000.00 $ 763,000.00

DE VOS PLACE

Theater concrete repair $ 65,000.00

WI FI Equipment upgrades $ 50,000.00

Public circulation furniture $ 30,000.00

Snow Melt system $ 170,000.00

Theater fire curtain $ 250,000.00

Theater lighting instruments $ 50,000.00

Upgrade Telecom system $ 90,000.00 $ 705,000.00
2008 CARRYOVER

Theater Fall Arrest System $ 60,000.00

VAA Removable Seating $ 300,000.00 $ 360,000.00
TOTAL COMBINED BUDGET YE 2009 $1,828,000.00

VAN ANDEL ARENA: $763,000

1. VARIABLE FREQUENCY DRIVES $30,000 (VFDs)—Addition of VFDs to
9 pumps and fans primarily related to the ice plant. These drives provide the |
greatest possible energy savings to motors of this type. VFDs provide soft-
start capabilities, which decreases electrical stresses and line voltage sags
associated with full voltage motor start-ups. The applied frequency and
voltage are increased at a controlled rate, or ramped up, without drawing
excessive current.

Energy savings payback ranges from 8 months to 42 months depending on the
individual motor with the shorter time frame relating to the 4 largest motors.
Total payback for this project should be well under two years.



2. NW CONCOURSE EXPANSION $450,000—Expand NW concourse area by
2,000+sf to relieve congestion on larger attended events and improve
merchandise and food & beverage sales area.

Heavy congestion in this area caused by opposing traffic flows from Skywalk
entrance and main entrance crossing lines for main womens restroom and
merchandise stands. Figure 1 below is current congested area. Attachment A
shows proposed expansion.

......

f""'-x-...,..ﬂ“" ‘\"‘--.
f “o o)
—_jn WW Womens 7
Skyway "m Rest room .
YY1 E———o0Z O O
Merch area

congestion

I PE
2N
7
%
e
T

Figure 1

3. SECURITY CONCOURSE CAM_ERAS $50,000--Addition of 7 security
cameras and related recording/controls for arena east and west concourse.
Currently no security cameras in these areas.

4. ICE EDGER $8,000—Replacement equipment for ice maintenance.

5. UPPER BOWL CURTAIN $225,000—Blackout curtain and associated
rigging/controls to drape off upper bowl. Provides the ability to book events
requiring smaller seating capacity by making the facility appear smaller with
quantities of unsold seating not visible.



DE VOS PLACE: $705,000

Figure 2

THEATER CONCRETE REPAIR $65,000—Repairs to structural concrete
where high rigging steel connects. Over the years expansion/contraction have
caused concrete to crack and spaul. This project removes existing concrete,
reinstalls bearing plates and fills area with non-shrink grout. Budget includes
repairs, engineering fees, contingencies. Figures 2-4 below are examples of
damaged areas.






Figure 4

2. WI FI EQUIPMENT UPGRADES $50,000—Current system designed to
handel about 100 users at the same time throughout the facility. Experience is
showing demand for wireless is increasing as well as in much higher densities
ie meeting in a single room requiring 50 users. Also upgrades original
802.11b platform to 802.11a and 802.11g, the most current standards.

3. PUBLIC CIRCULATION FURNITURE $30,000—New lounge type
furniture for heavy traffic areas along the Skyway for rest/lounge areas; large
open area coming from Amway Hotel into DeVos Place, Skyway at the turn
by administrative offices, River Overlook area at top of west escalators.



Aor 17,2008 | 1:1%m | C:Documents and SeltingsCikroemCly Docurentalirawing!.dwg

HE o 3
nsad i1 \
11 55 o
gs;;;‘-‘-’. &g g \

i

edejd soAe( -ONS

seoedg uedQ Jo} SBOP] euNuIng

&0

2 o)
PR 3%
ol QR
= O %
0
4., SNOW MELT MONROE AVE—Current snow melt system on Monroe Ave.

extends from main Grand Gallery entrance to south edge of De Vos
Performance Hall. Effectively only covers the main entrance areas.

A. $170,000—Addition of snow melt system on Monroe Ave from south |
edge of De Vos Performance Hall south to property line of River City



Building at 201 Monroe. This assumes current refurbishment of Ricer
City Bldg will include snow melt.

5. THEATER FIRE CURTAIN $250,000—This project was in last years budget
at $115,000. Increases attributed to code requirements which will require a
dramatically heavier curtain, in turn requiring additional steel, supports, and
rigging. In addition lead time increased to over 20 weeks. This project needs
to be re-bid entirely.

6. THEATER LIGHTING INSTRUMENTS $50,000—Upgrade theatrical
lighting control system and software with addition of new theatrical lighting
instruments. Will provide more flexible theatrical lighting for local Arts
organizations as well as a number of touring attractions.

7. UPGRADES TO NORTEL TELECOM SYSTEM $90,000—Software and
hardware upgrades to existing telecom system for both Van Andel Arena and
De Vos Place. These upgrades are required by manufacturer to continue
software system support. As we review the requirements we will be analyzing
the number of ports we currently have to the actual use in an effort to reduce
the total cost of this upgrade.



Convention
Arena

Authority

Steven Heacock,
Chairman

Birgit Klohs

Clif Charles

Gary Mclnerney

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli

Lew Chamberlin

VAN ANDEL
ARENA

Van Andel Arena®

130 Fulton West

Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2601
616.742.6600

Fax 616.742.6197 Fax

Item IIL.b.v.

GRAND Ru' T COUNTY
e e e ]

e e e e e e Mt R
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT, CONVENTION. SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

Memorandum
To: Grand Rapids-Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority
From: Robert J. White, Kent County Fiscal Services Director
Date: June 19, 2007
Re: Fiscal Year 2008 Budget Amendment

The cover memorandum for agenda item VI — CAA Administrative Budget — contains a
sentence that reads as follows, “Recognition and authorization of the anticipated
budgetary overrun should be acknowledged prior to close-out of the current fiscal year
accounting.”

On Statement C of that report, it is noted that the current operating budget for the Van
Andel Arena® totals $3,622,718, with an updated current-year expenditure of $3,721,922.

It is recommended that the CAA Board adopt a resolution authorizing an increase in the
budget of the Van Andel Arena® at least equal to the spending estimate.

DEVOSPLACE

DeVos Place®

303 Monroe Ave. NW

Grand Rapids, M| 49503-2233
616.742.6500
616.742.6590




Convention
Arena

Authority

Steven Heacock,
Chairman

Birgit Klohs

Clif Charles

Gary Mclnerney

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli

Lew Chomberlin

VAN ANDEL

ARENA

Item IIL.b.vi.

GRAND RA

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT, CONVENTION. SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

Memorandum
To: CAA Board Members
From: Robert White, Director
Kent County Fiscal Services
Date: June 19, 2008
Re: Review/Recommendation Concerning Investment Policy/Practices

Attached immediately following this memorandum is a copy of the Convention/Arena
Authority’s investment policy as approved on July 20, 2000. Section V., “Suitable and
Authorized Investment” generally mirrors the definition of investments permitted by state
statute, with the exception of “Obligations of this State or any of its political subdivisions
...” T .do not believe the Authority would find an investment of this nature as providing a
competitive interest rate. These debt obligations are predominantly tax-exempt/long-term
and the lower effective interest rate of these instruments reflects that status. I recommend
no change in the current investment policy of the Convention/Arena Authority.

In October 2004, the Convention/Arena Authority entered into an agreement with the
Kent County Treasurer whereby the County Treasurer’s office would provide investment
management services for a significant portion of the Authority’s available funds. The
County Treasurer’s practice is to generally invest this money in U.S. obligations and
certificates of deposit with an average one-year maturity. Attachment B provides a
comparative analysis of County “pooled investment” rates with one-year U.S. Treasury
obligations over the term of this agreement (forty-two months). The pooled investment
account has returned an average interest rate of 4.14% versus a benchmark rate (one-year
U.S. Treasuries) of 4.06%. I would recommend that the Finance Committee of the
Authority continue to utilize the services of the County Treasurer and his “pooled
investment” account to provide investment management services for the Authority.

Attachment C provides a listing of the various accounts of the Convention/Arena
Authority held either by SMG, as facility manager, or by the Authority itself. The interest
rates quoted on each account are those that were available on April 30, 2008. This
material is provided only as background information for the members of the Authority
Finance Committee.

— L
DEVOSPLACE
DeVos Place®
303 Monroe Ave. NW
Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2233
16.742.6500
16.742.6590

GRAND RAFIDS

Van Andel Arena®
130 Fulton West
Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2601
616.742.6600 6
Fax 616.742.6197 Fax 6




Attachment A

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

INVESTMENT POLICY
Approved July 20, 2000

To comply with Act 20 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1943, as amended - |

I. Purpose

It is the policy of the Convention/Arena Authority to invest its funds in a manner which will
provide the highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash
flow needs of the Convention/Arena Authority, and comply with all State stafutes governing the
investment of public funds.

1. Scope

This policy applies to all financial assets of the Convention/Arena Authority, These assets are
accounted for in the Operating, Capital Replacement Reserve and Capital Improvement Funds
and any tiew fund established by the Convention/Arena Authority. i et T TN T
"L Objectives o

The primary objectives, in priority order, of investment activities shall be safety, liquidity, and
yield: _ '

A. Safety Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.
Investments shall be undertaken in a manmer that seeks to ensure the preservation of

capital in the overall portfolio. The objective will be to mitigate credit risk and interest
rate risk. '

1. Credit Risk The Convention/Aréna Authority will minimize credit 1isk, the

risk of loss due to the failure of the security issuer or backer, by:

o Limiting investments to the safest types of securities

¢ Pre-qualifying the financial institutions, broker/dealers, intermediaries, and
advisers with which the Convention/Arena Authority will do business

» Diversifying the investment portfolio so that potential losses on individual
securities will be minimized

INVESTMENT POLICY DRAFT 0623000]
Page 1 of 4



2. Interest Rate Risk The Convention/Arena Authority will minimize the risk
that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in
general interest rates, by:

o Structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash
requirements for ongoing operahons thereby avoiding the need to sell
securities on the open market prior to maturity

o Investing operating funds primarily in shorter-term securities.

B. Liquidity The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all
operating requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. This is acconplished by
structuring the portfolio so that securities mature concurrent with cash needs to meet
anticipated demands (static lignidity)., Purthermore, since all possible cash demands
cannot be anticipated, the portfolio should consist largely of securities with active
secondary or resale markets (dynamic liquidity).

C. Yield The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a
market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, takmg into account the
investment risk constraints and liquidity needs. Return on investment is of secondary
importance compared fo the safety and liquidity objectives described above. The core of
investments are limited to relatively low risk securities in anticipation of earning a fair

. return relative to the risk being assumed. Secuntxes shall not be sold prior to matunty
with the following exceptions:

o A security with declining credit may be sold éarly to minimize loss of prm01pal
o A security swap would improve the quality, yield, or target duration in the portfolio
» Liquidity needs of the portfolio require that the security be sold

IV. Standards of Care

A. Prudence The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the
“prudent person” standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall
portfolio. Investment officers acting in accordance with written procedures and this
investment policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal
responsibility for an individual security’s credit risk or market price changes; provided
deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion and the liguidity and the
sale of securities are carried out in accordance with the terms of this policy.

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing,
which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of
their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety
of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived.

INVESTMENT POLICY DRAFT 06230001
Page2af 4



B. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest Officers and employees involved in the investment
process shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with the proper
execution and management of the investment program, or that could inapair their ability
to make impartial decisions. Employees and investment officials shall disclose any
material interests in financia institutions with which they conduct business. They shall
further disclose any personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the
performance of the investment portfolio. Employees and officers shall refrain from
undertaking personal investment transactions with the same individual with whom
business is conducted on bebalf of the Convention/Arena Authority.

C. Delegation of Authority Management responsibility for the investment program is
hereby delegated to the Treasurer, who shall establish written procedures and internal
controls for the operation of the investment program consistent with this investment
policy. Procedures should include references to: safekeeping, delivery vs. payment,
investment accounting, repurchase agreements, wire transfer agreements, -
collateral/depository agreements, and banking service contracts. No person may engage
in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this policy, and the
procedures established by the Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be responsible for &l
transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities
of subordinate officials.

V. Suitable and Authorized Tnvestment

(1)  The Treasurer is ﬁrhited to investments authorized by Act 20 of 1943, as amended, and
may invest in the following:

A. Bonds, securities and other obligations of the United States, or an agency or
instrumentality of the United States -

B. Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts, or depository receipts of a
financial institution, but only if the financial institution complies with subsection (2)

C. Comumercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the twio highest: classifications
established by not less than two standard rating services, and the debt matures not more
than 270 days after the date of purchase ' '

D. Repurchase agreements consisting of instruments listed in the subdivision (letter A.)

E. Bankers acceptances of United States banks

INVESTMENT POLICY DRAFT 06230001
Page 3of 4



(2) A public corporation that invests its funds under subsection (1) shall not deposit or invest
the funds in a financial institution that is not eligible to be a depasitory of funds belonging to the
State under a Jaw or rule of this State, or the United States.

V1. Safekeeping and Custody

All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements and financial institution
deposits, entered into by the Treasurer shall be on a cash basis. Securities may be held by a third
party custodian designated by the Treasurer, and evidenced by safckeepmg receipts as
determined by the Treasurer.

VII. Reporting

The Treasurer shall prepare an investment report at least quarterly, including a management
summary that provides an analysis of the status of the current investment portfolio and
transactions made over the last quarter. This management summary will be prepared in a manner

which will allow the Convention/Arena Authority to ascertain whether investment activities
during the reporting period conform to the investment policy. The 1eport will be provided to the
full Board of the Convention/Arena Authority.

INVESTMENT POLICY DRAFT 0623000/
Page 4 of 4



Attachment B

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Investments in Kent County Pooled Account
Actual Return Compared in One-Year US Treasuries
November 2004 to Present

US Treasury  County Pooled Positive Margin

Mo./Year” 1 Year Account Rate (Shortfall)
4/08 1.56% 4.11% . 2.55%
3/08 1.32 431 2.99
2/08 2.02 4.53 2.51
1/08 2.87 4.70 1.83

12/07 334 4.80 1.46
11/07 3.49 4.89 1.40
10/07 433 5.02 0.69
9/07 423 5.09 0.86
8/07 441 5.09 0.68
7/07 5.01 5.10 0.09
6/07 493 5.07 0.14
5/07 4.85 5.05 0.20
4/07 4,97 5.12 0.15
3/07 4.93 5.06 0.13
2/07 5.04 5.08 0.04
1/07 5.06 5.08 0.02
12/06 4.96 5.08 0.12
11/06 5.04 5.02 (0.02)
10/06 5.05 5.00 (0.05)
9/06 5.03 495 (0.08)
8/06 5.11 4.85 (0.26)
7/06 5.24 4.68 (0.56)
6/06 5.15 4.56 (0.59)
5/06 5.01 4.45 (0.56)
4/06 4.93 4.32 (0.61)
3/06 4.77 418 (0.59)
2/06 4.70 3.99 (0.71)
1/06 4.42 3.85 (0.57)
12/05 4.33 3.70 (0.63)
11/05 4.38 3.57 (0.81)
10/05 4.21 3.52 (0.69)
9/05 3.81 3.39 (0.42)
8/05 391 3.23 (0.68)
7/05 3.61 3.10 (0.51)
6/05 3.39 3.00 (0.39)
5/05 3.33 2.87 (0.46)
4/05 3.26 2.76 (0.50)
3/05 3.32 2.64 . (0.68)
2/05 3.03 2.50 (0.53)
1/05 2.90 2.36 (0.54)
12/04 2.64 2.24 (0.40)
11/04 2.53 2.12 0.41)

Average (42 Mos.) 4.06% 4.14% +.08%



Attachment C

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Cash/Investment Balances @ April 30, 2008

Balance Rate
CAA Administrative Accounts:
Checking . $509,238 2.000%
Pooled Investments 21,567,063 4.114%
22,076,301 4.065%
SMG Operating:
DeVos Place
Operating 299,148 0.345%
Box Office 295,363 0.246%
Payroll (11,359) 0.000%
Money Market 165,692 2.230%
Van Andel Arena
Operating 1,005,349 0.350%
Box Office 554,137 0.277%
Payroll (2,556) 0.000%
Money Market-Operating 663,065 2.230%
Money Market-Box Office 146,000 2.860%
Commercial Paper
- 5/23/08 759,556 3.050%
- 6/2/08 1,011,558 2.950%
- 5/12/08 592,043 2.420%
5,477,996 1.767%
Totals $27,554,297 3.608%




Convention
Arena

Authority

Steven Heacock,
Chairman

Birgit Klohs

Clit Charles

Gary Mclnerney

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli

Lew Chamberlin

VAN ANDEL

ARENA

Jt Item IV
GRAND RACIDS-KENT COUNTY

lll

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERFAINMENT. CONVENTION. SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

MEMORANDUM

TO: CAA Board

RE: Five (5) Year Rental Rates, DeVos Piace®

| would like to take this opportunity to present SMG’s recommendations for Room Rental
Rates for DeVos Place, effective FY July 2008 through FY June 2013. SMG has
established a 5-year rate card for DeVos Place® to provide potential clients chance to
guarantee rental rates in outlying years. Historically, while rental rates at DeVos Place®
have not increased more than 3.25% each year over the past few years (averaging
between 2.75% - 3%); our rates continue to hover in the mid-range on the regional
average. Our proposed pricing schedules reflect current comparisons for rent, based on
current economic assumptions in the regional marketplace (2007-2008) and knowledge
of rental rates of comparable venues of similar size in the area.

We consider a 5-year rate card to be a key marketing element for the facility. In addition,
given our current flexibility to negotiate rental rates with clients (limited to an increase or
reduction no greater than 20% of the approved rates), the proposed rates affords us
continued opportunities to be competitive in the bidding process for regional and national
conventions. While it is difficult to do a direct rental cost comparison within our
competitive set, by adopting a 5-year rental rate card, we position ourselves appropriately
to deliver the most value for the quality of product we serve.

Within the structure of the rental rate cards approved by the CAA, SMG is committed to
provide the best services required in the marketing of the facilities. Given the current
market conditions, we stand confident that our proposed recommendations in rental
prices are within acceptable price points for current market conditions and into the
foreseeable future.

Attachments: Rental Rate Schedules FY’s 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013

Van Andel Arenas

130 Fulton West

Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2601
616.742.6600

Fax 616.742.6197

DEVOSPLACE

DeVos Place®
303 Monroe Ave. NW

Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2233
616.742.6500
Fax 616.742.6590



ROOM RENTAL RATES
FY 2009 (July 1, 2008 — June 30, 2009)

ONE DAY
ROOM PERFORM NON-PROFIT CONVENTION CONSUMER MEETING BANQUET
DeVos Hall $2,500 vs $2,500/1* Performance N/A N/A $2,500 N/A
(Sun — Thurs) 12% $1,250/2" Performance
DeVos Hall $3,000 vs $3,000/1° Performance N/A N/A $2,500 N/A
(Fri-Sat) 12% $1,500/2™ Performance
Hall A-C $16,875 N/A $13,500 or $16,875 or $.29 $16,875 $8,550
vs 12% $.25 net sq. ft. net sq. ft.
Hall A-B $11,250 N/A $9,000 or $11,250 or $11,250 $5,700
or B-C vs 12% $.25 net sq. ft $.29 net sq. ft.
Hall A, B, $5,625 vs N/A $4,500 or $5,625 or $5,625 $2,850
OorC 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Meeting Rooms $1,200 vs N/A $975 or $1,200 or $1,200 $900
Grand Gallery 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
lst or 2nd
Meeting Rooms $375 vs N/A $375 or $375 or $375 $375
Grand Gallery 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Individual
Banquet Room $5,000 vs N/A $4,050 or $5,000 or $5,000 $2,900
12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Banquet Room $1,750 vs N/A $1,650 or $1,750 or $1,750 $1,300
A,B,C-D 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Banquet Room $900 vs N/A $850 or $900 or $900 $800
CorD 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
River Overlook $375 vs N/A $375 per day $375 per day $375 $375
Meeting Rooms 12%
Board Room N/A N/A $400 per day $400 per day $400 $400
Monroe Meeting $800 vs N/A $750 per day $800 per day $800 $750
Rooms A-D 12%
Monroe Meeting N/A N/A $250 per day $250 per day $250 $250
Room B, C, or D
Recital Hall or $550 vs N/A $550 per day $550 per day $550 $550
Monroe Meeting 12%
Room A

As managers of DeVos Place, SMG has the right to negotiate rental rates with clients, but

agrees that such negotiations will be limited to an increase or reduction no greater than 20% of
approved rental rates. These fluctuations may be considered if it became the shared position of
affected area businesses that mutual special consideration is necessary to attract the business.
SMG also has the right to negotiate rates for labor and equipment in accordance with industry
standards, including charging for items which may not be included on this rental rate sheet.



ROOM RENTAL RATES
FY 2010 (July 1,2009 — June 30, 2010)

ONE DAY
ROOM PERFORM NON-PROFIT CONVENTION CONSUMER MEETING BANQUET
DeVos Hall $2,600 vs $2,600/1° Performance N/A N/A $2,600 N/A
(Sun — Thurs) 12% $1,300/2" Performance
DeVos Hall $3,100 vs $3,100/1* Performance N/A N/A $2,600 N/A
(Fri-Sat) 12% $1,550/2™ Performance
Hall A-C $17,400 N/A $14,025 or $17,400 or $.29 $17,400 $8,850
vs 12% $.25 net sq. ft. net sq. ft.
Hall A-B $11,600 N/A $9,350 or $11,600 or $11,600 $5,900
or B-C vs 12% $.25 net sq. ft $.29 net sq. ft.
Hall A, B, $5,800 vs N/A $4,675 or $5,800 or $5,800 $2,950
OorC 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Meeting Rooms $1,250 vs N/A $1,000 or $1,250 or $1,250 $925
Grand Gallery 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
lsl or 2nd
Meeting Rooms $400 vs N/A $400 or $400 or $400 $400
Grand Gallery 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Individual
Banquet Room $5,150 vs N/A $4,175 or $5,150 or $5,150 $3,000
12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. fi.
Banquet Room $1,800 vs N/A $1,700 or $1,800 or $1,800 $1,350
AB,C-D 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Banquet Room $950 vs N/A $900 or $950 or $9s0 $850
CorD 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
River Overlook $400 vs N/A $400 per day $400 per day $400 $400
Meeting Rooms 12%
Board Room N/A N/A $450 per day $450 per day $450 $450
Monroe Meeting $850 vs N/A $800 per day $850 per day $850 $800
Rooms A-D 12%
Monroe Meeting N/A N/A $300 per day $300 per day $300 $300
Room B, C,or D
Recital Hall or $600 vs N/A $600 per day $600 per day $600 $600
Monroe Meeting 12%
Room A

As managers of DeVos Place, SMG has the right to negotiate rental rates with clients, but

agrees that such negotiations will be limited to an increase or reduction no greater than 20% of
approved rental rates. These fluctuations may be considered if it became the shared position of
affected area businesses that mutual special consideration is necessary to attract the business.
SMG also has the right to negotiate rates for labor and equipment in accordance with industry

standards, including charging for items which may not be included on this rental rate sheet.




ROOM RENTAL RATES
FY 2011 (July 1,2010 - June 30, 2011)

ONE DAY
ROOM PERFORM NON-PROFIT CONVENTION CONSUMER MEETING BANQUET
DeVos Hall $2,700 vs $2,700/1° Performance N/A N/A $2,700 N/A
(Sun — Thurs) 12% $1,350/2" Performance
DeVos Hall $3,200 vs $3,200/1% Performance N/A N/A $2,700 N/A
(Fri-Sat) 12% $1,600/2" Performance
Hall A-C $17,925 N/A $14,550 or $17,925 or $.29 $17,925 $9,150
vs 12% $.25 net sq. ft. net sq. ft.
Hall A-B $11,950 N/A $9,700 or $11,950 or $11,950 $6,100
or B-C vs 12% $.25 net sq. ft $.29 net sq. ft.
Hall A, B, $5,975 vs N/A $4,850 or $5,975 or $5,975 $3,050
orC 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Meeting Rooms $1,300 vs N/A $1,050 or $1,300 or $1,300 $950
Grand Gallery 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
lst or 2nd
Meeting Rooms $425 vs N/A $425 or $425 or $425 $425
Grand Gallery 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Individual
Ballroom $5,300 vs N/A $4,300 or $5,300 or $5,300 $3,100
12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Ballroom $1,850 vs N/A $1,750 or $1,850 or $1,850 $1,400
AB,C-D 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Ballroom $1,000 vs N/A $950 or $1,000 or $1,000 $900
CorD 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
River Overlook $425 vs N/A $425 per day $425 per day $425 $425
Meeting Rooms 12%
Board Room N/A N/A $475 per day $475 per day $475 $475
Monroe Meeting $900 vs N/A $850 per day $900 per day $900 $850
Rooms A-D 12%
Monroe Meeting N/A N/A $325 per day $325 per day $325 $325
Room B, C, or D
Recital Hall or $625 vs N/A $625 per day $625 per day $625 $625
Monroe Meeting 12%
Room A

As managers of DeVos Place, SMG has the right to negotiate rental rates with clients, but

agrees that such negotiations will be limited to an increase or reduction no greater than 20% of
approved rental rates. These fluctuations may be considered if it became the shared position of
affected area businesses that mutual special consideration is necessary to attract the business.
SMQG also has the right to negotiate rates for labor and equipment in accordance with industry

standards, including charging for items which may not be included on this rental rate sheet.




ROOM RENTAL RATES
FY 2012 (July 1, 2011 — June 30, 2012)

ONE DAY
ROOM PERFORM NON-PROFIT CONVENTION CONSUMER MEETING  BANQUET
DeVos Hall $2,800 vs $2,800/1° Performance N/A N/A $2,800 N/A
(Sun — Thurs) 12% $1,400/2™ Performance
DeVos Hall $3,300 vs $3,300/1* Performance N/A N/A $2,800 N/A
(Fri-Sat) 12% $1,650/2™ Performance
Hall A-C $18,450 N/A $15,075 or $18,450 or $.29 $18,450 $9,450
vs 12% $.25 net sq. ft. net sq. ft.
Hall A-B $12,300 N/A $10,050 or $12,300 or $12,300 $6,300
or B-C vs 12% $.25 net sq. ft $.29 net sq. ft.
Hall A, B, $6,150 vs N/A $5,025 or $6,150 or $6,150 $3,150
OorC 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Meeting Rooms $1,350 vs N/A $1,100 or $1,350 or $1,350 $975
Grand Gallery 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
lst or 2nd
Meeting Rooms $450 vs N/A $450 or $450 or $450 $450
Grand Gallery 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Individual
Ballroom $5,450 vs N/A $4,450 or $5,450 or $5,450 $3,200
12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Ballroom $1,900 vs N/A $1,800 or $1,900 or $1,900 $1,450
A,B,C-D 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. fi.
Ballroom $1,050 vs N/A $1,000 or $1,050 or $1,050 $950
CorD 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
River Overlook $450 vs N/A $450 per day $450 per day $450 $450
Meeting Rooms 12%
Board Room N/A N/A $500 per day $500 per day $500 $500
Monroe Meeting $950 vs N/A $900 per day $950 per day $950 $900
Rooms A-D 12% ;
Monroe Meeting N/A N/A $350 per day $350 per day $350 $350
Room B, C, or D
Recital Hall or $675 vs N/A $675 per day $675 per day $675 $675
Monroe Meeting 12%
Room A

As managers of DeVos Place, SMG has the right to negotiate rental rates with clients, but

agrees that such negotiations will be limited to an increase or reduction no greater than 20% of
approved rental rates. These fluctuations may be considered if it became the shared position of
affected area businesses that mutual special consideration is necessary to attract the business.
SMG also has the right to negotiate rates for labor and equipment in accordance with industry
standards, including charging for items which may not be included on this rental rate sheet.



ROOM RENTAL RATES
FY 2013 (July 1, 2012 - June 30, 2013)

ONE DAY
ROOM PERFORM NON-PROFIT CONVENTION CONSUMER MEETING BANQUET
DeVos Hall $2,900 vs $2,900/1* Performance N/A N/A $2,900 N/A
(Sun — Thurs) 12% $1,450/2™ Performance
DeVos Hall $3,400 vs $3,400/1* Performance N/A N/A $2,900 N/A
(Fri-Sat) 12% $1,700/2™ Performance
Hall A-C $18,975 N/A $15,600 or $18,975 or $18,975 $9,750
vs 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Hall A-B $12,650 N/A $10,400 or $12,650 or $12,650 $6,500
or B-C vs 12% $.25 net sq. ft $.29 net sq. ft.
Hall A, B, $6,325 vs N/A $5,200 or $6,325 or $6,325 $3,250
orC 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Meeting Rooms $1,400 vs N/A $1,150 or $1,400 or $1,400 $1,000
Grand Gallery 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
lsl or 2nd
Meeting Rooms $475 vs N/A $475 or $475 or $475 $475
Grand Gallery 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Individual
Ballroom $5,600 vs N/A $4,600 or $5,600 or $5,600 $3,300
12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Ballroom $1,950 vs N/A $1,850 or $1,950 or $1,950 $1,500
A,B,C-D 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Ballroom $1,100 vs N/A $1,050 or $1,100 or $1,100 $1,000
CorD 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
River Overlook $475 vs N/A $475 per day $475 per day $475 $475
Meeting Rooms 12%
Board Room N/A N/A $525 per day $525 per day $525 $525
Monroe Meeting $1,000 vs N/A $950 per day $1,000 per day $1,000 $950
Rooms A-D 12%
Monroe Meeting N/A N/A $375 per day $375 per day $375 $375
Room B, C, or D
Recital Hall or $700 vs N/A $700 per day $700 per day $700 $700
Monroe Meeting 12%
Room A

As managers of DeVos Place, SMG has the right to negotiate rental rates with clients, but

agrees that such negotiations will be limited to an increase or reduction no greater than 20% of
approved rental rates. These fluctuations may be considered if it became the shared position of
affected area businesses that mutual special consideration is necessary to attract the business.
SMQG also has the right to negotiate rates for labor and equipment in accordance with industry
standards, including charging for items which may not be included on this rental rate sheet.



Convention
Arena

Authority

Steven Heacock,
Chairman

Birgit Klohs

Clif Charles

Gary Mclnerney

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli

Lew Chamberlin

VAN ANDEL

AREN

. Item V
GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

A o e s s e e gt gt
R Ty e T Rl T et ey o Nt )
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. CONVENTION. SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

To: Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
From: Robert J. White

Date: June 19, 2008

Re: Fiscal Year 2009 Contracts

DeVos Place® Parking Facility — City Auto Parking Service Contract

The City and the CAA first entered into a “Parking Operation and Maintenance
Agreement” for DeVos Place® in January 2004. That contract expired on June 30, 2005,
and was renewed under the same general terms and conditions scheduled to now expire on
June 30, 2008. The services provided under the existing agreement included staffing of
the parking booths (operations), security (roving security personnel who provide both
security and customer assistance), and routine maintenance including striping, wash-
down, cleaning, and sweeping (facilities maintenance). The proposed new contract,
attached hereto, retains the services of the City-Auto Parking System for operations and
security on and after July 1, 2008. The facilities maintenance requirements would be
provided by the facility manager (SMG), subject to approval of the SMG budget for Fiscal
Year 2009. This recommendation is being made in order to eliminate a significant overlap
in maintenance responsibilities between SMG and Auto Parking System personnel. In
addition, the Authority would significantly reduce its cost exposure.

The Fiscal Year 2008 budget, previously approved, provided a budgetary allowance of
$365,243 for services provided under the existing Auto Parking System — Operating and
Maintenance Agreement. The proposed Fiscal Year 2009 budget, originally submitted by
Auto Parking System, totaled $332,199. After removal of the facilities maintenance
portion of the original budget submittal, the revised budget request totals $281,495. In
substitution for facilities maintenance services provided by the City-Auto Parking System,
SMG will submit a separate indirect expense category for like services to be provided.
The budgetary request submitted by SMG for this activity totals $25,000, including a one-
time expense of $8,000 for extension of water service lines into the facility. This
represents a savings of approximately $25,000 from the budgetary forecast submitted by
the City-Auto Parking System. In addition, consolidation of this maintenance work in the
parking facility will avoid the overlap of responsibilities which presently exists between
the two entities.

I am recommending that the “Parking Operation Agreement” with the City of Grand
Rapids be approved for a new three-year period.

Attachment: Parking Operation Agreement as drafted by CAA legal counsel, Richard
Wendt.

Van Andel Arena® DeVos Places®
130 Fulton West 303 Monroe Ave. NW
Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2601 Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2233
616.742.6600 616.742.6500
Fax 616.742.6197 Fax 616.742.6590



PARKING OPERATION AGREEMENT

THIS PARKING OPERATION AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made as of
Julyl, 2008, by and |between the GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY, a Michigan statutory authority (the "CAA" or
"Authority"), and the CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, a Michigan municipal corporation (the
"City").

PREMISES

A. The CAA controls the operation of DeVos Place, a performing
arts/convention/entertainment facility located at 303 Monroe Avenue, N.W.,, in the City (the
"Convention Center"), including 690 parking spaces located in the lower level of the Convention
Center identified on Exhibit A attached hereto (the "Parking Spaces").

B. The Operating Agreement dated as of March 29, 2000 (the "Operating
Agreement"), between the County of Kent (the "County") and the City related to the Convention
Center provides that (a) "all parking facilities constituting a portion of the Convention Center
shall be operated by the City's Parking System under the direction of the Authority with any net
income in a fiscal year of the Authority, after deduction of operating expenses, belong to the
Authority" and (b) "the Authority shall make available to the County and the City, for employees
and other users the parking spaces in the Convention Center parking facilities at a cost equal to a
pro rata share of operating expenses."

C. The CAA and the City previously entered into a Parking Operation and
Maintenance Agreement dated June 21, 2005, related to the Parking Spaces which expires
June 30, 2008.

D. The CAA and the City desire to enter into this Agreement setting forth (a) the
terms and conditions for the continued operation but not maintenance of the Parking Spaces and
(b) the basis for providing, including the determination of cost, the Parking Spaces to the County
and the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth below, the
parties agree as follows:

Section 1. Operation of Parking Spaces. Subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, the City, through its Parking Services Department (the "Department"), shall be
responsible for the operation of the Parking Spaces.

Section 2. Parking Control Equipment. The CAA shall at its cost be responsible
for providing, replacing and upgrading at each entry/exit to the Parking Spaces parking control
equipment compatible with the City's Automobile Parking System (the "System") and, where
required, attendant booths of the same or similar quality as booths located in City-owned parking
ramps within the System. The City shall be responsible for the maintenance of such parking
control equipment and attendant booths. In this regard, the City currently maintains its parking
control equipment throughout the System pursuant to a maintenance agreement with an outside
vendor and has included the Convention Center Parking Spaces parking control equipment in

GRAPIDS 61448-132 160678v2



such maintenance agreement and will include the Convention Center Parking Spaces parking
control equipment in any future maintenance agreements and will pass such additional costs
related to such parking control equipment on to the CAA as an operational cost which the CAA
agrees to pay.

Section 3. Conditions of Operation. The operation of the Parking Spaces by the
Department shall be subject to the following conditions:

(a) Unless otherwise agreed by the CAA and the City, the Department shall be
responsible for providing: '

1. Attendant staffing as and to the level mutually determined necessary by
the CAA's Owner's Representative and the Department.

2. Security/customer service "red car" patrol at the same level provided to
parking lots and ramps in the System during those times that the Parking
Spaces are available for public monthly pass, daily in/out or special event
use. It is understood that the CAA has installed and will maintain and
monitor security cameras throughout the area of the Parking Spaces as a
part of the Convention Center's overall security system.

3. Supervision of Department personnel performing services pursuant to this
Agreement related to the Parking Spaces and related administrative
services including management and accounting services.

(b)  The level of operation provided shall, except as otherwise provided in this
Agreement, be equal to that provided by the Department to City-owned ramps
operated and maintained by the Department.

(c) The City, including the Department, shall not be responsible for any maintenance
of the Parking Spaces.

Section 4. Utilities. The CAA shall be responsible for furnishing and paying for
utilities related to the space occupied by the Parking Spaces, including electricity for lighting and
parking control equipment and electric and telephone lines for attendant booths.

Section 5. Hours of Operation. The CAA's Owner's Representative shall determine
the hours of operation of the Parking Spaces for both event and non-event days.

Section 6. City and County Use of Parking Spaces. Pursuant to the terms of the
Operating Agreement, the CAA is required to make the Parking Spaces available to the County
and the City for employees and other users on a prepaid monthly pass basis. When such spaces
are requested by the County or the City, the Department shall work with the CAA to facilitate
making the requested spaces available. Unless otherwise mutually agreed by the City and CAA,
the City agrees that it will maintain from time to time at the Government Center Parking Ramp
located across Monroe Avenue from the Convention Center (the "Government Center Ramp") as
daily/special event spaces (without in and out privileges) parking spaces of an equal number to

2-

GRAPIDS 61448-132 160678v2



the number of spaces that have moved from the Government Center Ramp to the Parking Spaces
at the request of the City.

Section 7. Monthly Parking Passes. Except for the monthly parking passes
required to be made available to the City and County pursuant to Section 6 hereof, the total
number of monthly parking passes issued at any one time for the Parking Spaces shall be
approved by the CAA's Owner's Representative.

Section 8.  Establishment of Parking Rates. Rates charged for use of the Parking
Spaces, except those made available to the County and City pursuant to Section 6 hereof, shall be
(a) as determined from time to time by the City Parking Commission and the City Commission
in conjunction with the Department's annual facilities study update after receiving input from the
CAA's Owner’s Representative, and (b) as finally approved by the CAA's Owner's
Representative provided, however, such (i) prepaid daily maximum rate shall not be less than
80% of the similar rate charged at the Government Center Ramp and (ii) the prepaid monthly
pass rate and special event rates shall not be less than those similar rates charged at the
Government Center Ramp unless the CAA and the City otherwise mutually agree.

Section 9. Establishment of Parking Rates for County and City Use. In
accordance with the provisions of the Operating Agreement, parking spaces made available to
the County and City pursuant to Section 6 hereof are to be provided at a cost equal to the pro rata
share of the operating and maintenance expenses of the Parking Spaces used by the County and
City. The Department shall with the assistance of the CAA’s Owner’s Representative determine
such cost annually in conjunction with its annual facilities update. Costs to be incorporated in
the rate established for the County and the City shall include the Department's operating costs,
including a reasonable management fee related to the Parking Spaces (the "Department
Operating Costs") and a pro rata share of operation and maintenance incurred by the CAA in
connection with the Parking Spaces such as a pro rata share of utility costs, elevator
maintenance, insurance premiums and building security and maintenance costs related to the
Parking Spaces for maintenance services performed by the CAA’s Owner’s Representative or
other entity(ies) the CAA contracts with to provide such maintenance services (collectively, with
the Department Operating Costs, the "Parking Spaces Operating and Maintenance Costs"). For
each fiscal year during the term of this Agreement beginning with the fiscal year commencing
July 1, 2008, the rate established for the City and the County (the "CC Rate") shall be
determined based on estimated costs for such fiscal year plus an upward or downward
adjustment to reflect the recovery of actual costs versus estimated costs for the prior fiscal year
(the "Adjustment"). The CC Rate for the County and City shall be determined by dividing the
total number of monthly passes for the Parking Spaces issued by the Department at the time of
such determination (but such number shall never be less than the number of Parking Spaces) into
the Parking Spaces Operating and Maintenance Costs plus or minus the Adjustment for such
fiscal year. The Department shall make available to the CAA's Owner's Representative the
calculation of such CC Rate for review and approval prior to the implementation of such CC
Rate. It is understood that for the purpose of determining the CC Rate, Parking Spaces
Operating and Maintenance Costs will not be allocated to daily in/out parkers and event parkers.

Section 10. Preparation and Approval of Annual Budget. The Department shall
prepare and submit to the CAA's Owner's Representative for approval an operating cost budget
for the services it is required to perform pursuant to this Agreement for the Parking Spaces for

-3-

GRAPIDS 61448-132 160678v2



the ensuing fiscal year. Annual budgets shall be submitted at least 90 days prior to the beginning
of the CAA’s fiscal year (July 1).

Section 11. Review of Procedures for Establishing Parking Rates and Other
Matters. The CAA through it's Owner's Representative and the City through the Department
agree to meet to review the procedures used to establish rates pursuant to Sections 8 and 9 hereof
and, if based on such review, it is mutually agreed to revise such procedures, to amend this
Agreement to reflect such revisions. In addition, the CAA through it's Owner's Representative
and the Department agree to communicate regularly as necessary concerning the levels of
operation service provided for the Parking Spaces and to meet and review such levels of service
on an annual basis.

Section 12. Collection and Deposit of Receipts and Payment of Department
Operating Costs. The Department shall bill and collect all revenues for the Parking Spaces
based on rates established pursuant to Sections 8 and 9 hereof and cause any such receipts
generated from hourly, daily or event collections to be deposited daily in a CAA bank account
pursuant to written instructions from the CAA's Owner's Representative. Bill receipts generated
from credit card, validation accounts and monthly card holder fees will be accounted for on a
monthly basis and subtracted from the monthly operating costs billing invoices. The Department
shall bill the CAA for Department Operating Costs on a calendar month basis. The billing
invoice shall contain "line item" detail and documentation verifying such Department Operating
Costs shall be promptly made available by the Department to the CAA's Owner's Representative
upon request. The CAA shall pay such invoices within 30 days of their receipt. If the CAA has
any questions regarding an invoice, it shall promptly notify the Department and the CAA's
Owner's Representative and the Department shall promptly meet to resolve such questions and
make any required adjustments in the invoice.

Section 13. Term. The Agreement shall be for a term commencing on July 1, 2008,
and ending June 30, 2011, subject to the right of either party to terminate the Agreement early on
July 1 of any year by giving written notice to the other party at least one year prior to the
termination date.

Section 14. Indemnification. The City shall indemnify the CAA and its officers,
boardmembers, employees and agents (the "CAA Indemnified Parties" or "CAA Indemnified
Party") against, and save the CAA Indemnified Parties harmless from, any and all liabilities,
obligations, damages, penalties, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys fees, paid or
incurred by the CAA Indemnified Parties and arising from the City's or the City's invitees use of
the Parking Spaces except such as arise from the willful acts or negligence of the CAA
Indemnified Parties. If any action or proceeding is brought against a CAA Indemnified Party, by
reason of any such claim, the City will, upon written notice from the CAA Indemnified Party, at
the City's expense, resist or defend such action or proceeding by counsel approved by the CAA
Indemnified Party in writing. In providing the indemnification set forth above, the City is not
waiving any defenses otherwise available to it by law; provided such defenses are also available
to, and asserted by, the City for the CAA Indemnified Parties. The City shall not be responsible
for the indemnification obligations set forth above with respect to any CAA Indemnified Party to
the extent that a CAA Indemnified Party has waived a defense which was otherwise available to
it by law.

GRAPIDS 61448-132 160678v2



The CAA shall indemnify the City and its officers, commissioners, employees and agents
(the "City Indemnified Parties" or "City Indemnified Party") against and save the City
Indemnified Parties harmless from any and all liabilities, obligations, damages, penalties, costs
and expenses, including reasonable attorneys fees, paid or incurred by the City Indemnified
Parties and arising from the CAA's and the CAA's invitees use and occupancy of the Parking
Spaces except such as arise from the willful acts or negligence of the City Indemnified Parties.
If any action or proceeding is brought against a City Indemnified Party by reason of any such
claim, the CAA will upon written notice from the City Indemnified Party, at the CAA's expense,
resist or defend such action or proceeding by counsel approved by the City Indemnified Party in
writing. In providing the indemnification set forth above, the CAA is not waiving any defenses
otherwise available to it by law; provided such defenses are also available to, and asserted by, the
CAA for the City Indemnified Parties. The CAA shall not be responsible for the indemnification
obligations set forth above with respect to any City Indemnified Party to the extent that a City
Indemnified Party has waived a defense which was otherwise available to it by law.

Section 15. Notices. All notices and other communications to be given pursuant to
this Agreement shall be given in writing and delivered personally, by certified or registered mail
(return receipt requested, postage prepaid) or by facsimile to the appropriate party at its address
or facsimile set forth below:

If to the CAA: Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena
Authority
303 Monroe Avenue, N.W.
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503
Attention: Administrative Manager
Facsimile Number: (616) 742-6197

If to the City: City of Grand Rapids
6th Floor, City Hall
300 Monroe Avenue, N.W,
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503
Attention: City Manager
Facsimile Number: (616) 456-3166

With a copy to: City of Grand Rapids
Parking Services Department
50 Ottawa Avenue, N.W.
P.O. Box 1968
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49501-1968
Attention: Parking Services Director
Facsimile Number: (616) 456-4322

Either party may change its designated address/facsimile number by delivery of written
notice of the change to the other party. Notices shall be deemed effective upon actual receipt.
Actual receipt of facsimile transmissions shall be presumed based upon the transmitting party's
receipt of a confirmation of transmission.

Section 16. General Provisions.

GRAPIDS 61448-132 160678v2



(a) This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the CAA and the City
related to the subject matter hereof, i.e., the operation of the Parking Spaces, and may be

modified or amended in whole or in part from time to time only by mutual written agreement of
the CAA and the City.

(b)  As used in this Agreement the term "Owner's Representative" shall mean the
general manager of the Convention Center or such other person as shall be designated to the
Department by the CAA in writing.

(c) This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of
Michigan.

(d)  Nothing in this Agreement is intended by the parties hereto to create, nor shall
anything in it be construed as creating, any obligations to, or rights in, any party not a signatory
to this Agreement that would not exist independent of this Agreement.

(e) If any particular portion of this Agreement is rendered invalid, illegal,
unenforceable or otherwise of no effect, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain
in full force and effect so that the essence and intent of this Agreement is preserved.

® A failure of either party to give notice or insist upon the immediate performance
of any right that it has under this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of that right or any
other right under this Agreement.

(2) The section headings of this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be
considered a part of the substance of this Agreement or affect the interpretations of this
Agreement.

(h)  This Agreement shall not be assigned, transferred or conveyed by either party
without the prior written consent of the other party.

(1) The City shall act solely as an independent contractor with respect to the
operation and maintenance of the Parking Spaces. The relationship of the City and the CAA
under this Agreement shall in no way be construed to create a joint venture or partnership, or to
constitute either party as an agent or employee of the other for any purpose.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this Agreement on the day first
written above.

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Steven R. Heacock, Chairman

CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS

-6-

GRAPIDS 61448-132 160678v2



George K. Heartwell, Mayor
Attest:

Lauri S. Parks, City Clerk

GRAPIDS 61448-132 160678v2



3 PR -
m ._ @ 1AOAVT ONIHLE
ml “ i |
(s 018013

...

10idO

-
L0V DHIEESY
N T ONaYd L

=

184053

e
. Ivon Wi ut.

NOILYAONZY ONY
NOISNVdX3
. ¥3IN3O NOILNIANOD

OAY UEBIEIN

~iie T ::' :r %‘:&J

OHOEBBLOOBOELBLOBOEEH®W
Tl . . VvV LI1g1HX3

- . . : [} .

A-1

GRAPIDS 61448-132 160678v2



NOLLYAGNIY GNV

NOISNYdX3
HIIN3D NOLINSANOD

/f/f;.
@

-

]

» % & ¢acks swe

f//.w./.f;:;/ /u

»u--u-

SEINERRIS L A i : i ” 7
IO g )1 T [ ¢l 0] @ & o] @ @ ® @ @ [ D Hme & o
e TERTE
L . . . . . . . : c ebed v LigiHX3 .

A-2

GRAPIDS 61448-132 160678v2



®
VAN ANDEL ARENA™ WEEKLY Item VII

DATE EVENT EC | MOD ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Wed, Jun 18 | SMG DG Huntington Club 8A-5P Finance software training
Thur, Jun 19 | SMG DG Hungtington Club 8A-5P Finance software training

Fri, Jun 20 Available

Sat, Jun 21 Available

Sun, Jun 22 Available

Mon, Jun 23 Available

Tue, Jun 24 Available

Wed, Jun 25 Available

Thur, Jun 26 | Available

Fri, Jun 27 Available

Sat, Jun 28 Available

Sun, Jun 29 Available

Mon, Jun 30 Available

Tue, Jul 1 Available

Wed, Jul 2 Available

Thur, Jul 3 Available

Fri, Jul 4

Closed — Holiday
Sat, Jul 5 Available
Sun, Jul 6 Available

Mon, Jul 7 Available

Tue, Jul 8 Available

Wed, Jul 9 Available

Thur, Jul 10 Available

Fri, Jul 11 Available

Sat, Jul 12 Available

Sun, Jul 13 Available

Mon, Jul 14 Available

Tue, Jul 15 Available

Wed, Jul 16 Available

Thur, Jul 17 Available

Fri, Jul 18 Available

Sat, Jul 19 Available

Sun, Jul 20 Available




3$3Q 150H slnodvaad 4V Od "INOD TVYNOILLDIASRINS TVELNAD
£qqoT yspm auoN QuoN suoN | DY NOISSIS TVIIANID NdOT - INVL vV 1Ivd HLION TVINNTIAVND 8007 | L1 AN ‘SYNHL
¥saq] 1504 auoN auoN auoN [ OV ONLLIIN | NJ00:S-NVOE: 1T g-v 59 | NOLLONV ALY¥IdOYd ALNNOD INTA
FONVNIINIVIA Avd 11V HdAdQ AOM FONVNILNIVIA - HIAQ
LNoMvTdg WNOOdQIvVOod
11giHXx4 d11vd
¥s3( 150H S1LNOMVIId J-vod "INOD TYNOILDIASRINS TVYLINID
£qqQo] yspam SuoN auoN suoN | 0¥ NOISSAS TVIINTD 01 -~ INVL v 1Ivd HLION TVINNTIAVNO 800T 91 ATNL "ddm
FONVNILNIVIA AVA TIV HdAd SIOM FONVNALINIVIA - HIAQ
&voq uok dni3s WOoOdqIvod
353 150H dnias 4V Od *dNOD TVNOLLIIASTNS TVILINTD
£9q07 yspam SuoN JuoN suoN | Od dnlias WdS — V8 gV 1Ived HLYON TVINNTIAVNO 800T S1 A0S SINL
Xsaq 1S0H "INOD TYNOILLDIASTINS TVIINID
£qqQo yspom JuON SUON SuoN | Y dnl1as NdS - V8 NOOIMIVOd HIYON TVINNTIAVNO 800T
FONVNALNIVIA Avd TV HdAd SHOM FONVNALNIVIA - HIAQ #1 A0l "NOW
1N0avo1l
odxd ¢ q wooljeq
Aqqo yspom 3uON SUON suoN | [N ONILFAN | wdgo:s ~wdgo:z1 2 711Ivd NOILNIANOD TYINNV VSN 8007 €1 AN 'NNS
JONVYNILNIVIN Avd TV HdAdQ SYOM FONVNAINIVIA - HIAQ
0odxd ¢ aTive
ONILFIN ureQ0:71- wdoo:6
WEWLAQ ONILITN wdpQ:9 — wdoo: 1
£qqQo ysjom SuoN auoN auoN [ [N ONILIIN wd):Z1- Wepo:6 2 11Ivd NOILNFANOD TVNINNV VSN 8007 TI A0S °LYS
auON aUON SUON suoN | O¥ ONILFIN | V00 T1-NV00:8 ¥ 0D ONILITN S ATOVNVIN ALID
FONVNILNIVIN Avd 1TV HdAQ AOM FONVNILNIVIA - HIAQ
I EIYG) NI-OVO1 OdX3 wdpQ:S ~ ureg:g a1ivd
£qqoT uspIM ONILFAW | wdog:s —wdogZl
¥oo( uok SUON SUON SuoN | N ONILFAN | wepg: 1] —weoe:g 2 11Ivd NOILLNIANOD TVNNNYV VSN 8007 11 A0S Tdd
FONVNILINIVIN Avd TV HdAdQ MIOM FONVNILNIVIN - HIAQ
W30 uolssag | weqgp:gl — wdpo:g
£qQoT yspom SUON SUON suoN | N uoISsag wdpg:s —wdog:| 2711Ivd NOILNIANOD TYANNY VSN 8002 | 01 A0S 'SYNHL
FONVNILNIVIN Avad 11V HdAQ SIOM FONVNALNIVIA - HIAQ
WSIWRAQ
¥poq uokg
£qqo7 yspom auoN SuoN suoN [ W dnldas wd(:$-INV00:8 D11Ivd NOILNFANOD TVANNY VSN 8007 6 A0( 'dam
FONVNILNIVIA AVAd TV HdAdQ IOM FONVNALINIVIA - HIAQ
FONVNILNIVIN AVA 1TV HdAd MIOM FONVNALINIVIA - HIAQ 8 A7I0Nf 'SANL
FONVNILNIVIN AvVd TV HdAd SRIOM FONVNALNIVIA - HIAQ L A10f 'NOW
FONVNILNIVIN Avd TV HdAd SRIOM FONVYNAINIVIA - HIAQ 9 A710f 'NNS
FONVNILNIVIN Avd TV HdAd SNIOM FONVNALNIVIA - HIAQ S A10[ 'LVS
FONVNILINIVIN Ava 1V HdAQ MIOM FONVNALINIVIA - HIAQ ¥ A10( Tdd
FONVNILNIVIN AVa 1TV HdAd YOM FONVNIINIVIN - HIAD | € A1 'SYNHL
FONVNILNIVIN Avd TV HdAdQ SNOM FONVNILNIVIA - HIAQ T AN aam
FONVNALNIVIN Avd 11V HdAQ SHOM FONVNIINIVIA - HIAQ 1 A10f°sanl
44v1S
ALIYND3S 30110d S.LN3 3SNOH 03 NOILONNS INIL ooy 1N3A3 3lva

800C AN - @ 3DV'1d SOA=Sd




1NOMvIYeg H-V 0D
SLNOMVIYG 4V 00 NOILNIANOD
adl adl adgl adgrL | 1S L191HX4d V HY MO09dVIOS NVOTAWY LVIID 9T AIN{ LVS
AqQoT ys|oM LSTIHD NI AOD 40 HOUNHD ¥3INTD
¥sa( 1S0H SUON SuoN SuoN | TS ONILFIN | Nd6S:TT-INV00:8 2 711Ivd INFANIIMOINEG ANOTO FLIHM
FONYNILNIVIA AVd TV HJAAQ MIOM FONVYNILNIVIA - HIAQ
LNoOJvVIId H-V 0D
SLNOVAVAYL 4V DO NOILNIANOD
adl adl adgl adalL| 18 LI9IHX4 Vv HA MO0FdVYIS NVORITAY LYTID STATINS T4
FONVNALNIVIN Avd 11V HdAQ MIOM FONVNILNIVIA - HIAQ
dnias H-V 0D
SLNOMvVTIg 44D i NOILLNAANOD
adl adgl adgl agl | s dnids Vv HY MOOIdVIOS NVORIFAY LYIID | $T ATN( SYNHL
3830 1S0H 3uoN 3UON SUON DNILITN NO00: [-INV00:L vV DD ANVINOD YOLOW Q04
FONVNALNIVIN Avd TV HdAd SIOM FONVNALNIVIA - HIAQ
NOLLNAANOD
adgl adl adgl uoN [ TS dnlas V HA NOOEdVIOS NVORANY LVIID €T AN 'adm
FONVNILNIVIA Avad 11TV HAAd MIOM FONVNALNIVIA - HIAQ TT AN sANL
FONVNILNIVIA AVA 1TV HJdAQ IOM FONVNIINIVIA - HIAQ 17 A7100 "NOW
FONVNILNIVIA Avd TV HdAQ SIOM FONVNALNIVIA - HIAQ
1N0avoi
NOISS3S TVIIANTD wdog:p — wdog:|
¥od IN NOISSTS TVYANAD | weog 1 - urego:6 OH3
359 150H 3UON SUON suoN | [N LSV Ivaid we(0:6 — WeQo:L g H3 SYIATING WVIIA FAIM ATIOM 0Z A710f 'NNS
Isureoy
Yoo uok|
£qqoT yspom
3S3Q 1S0H 3UON 3UON 3UON | TS WINNIA | ND6S:TI-NV00:8 2 11vd VA0 VZRIVIN 9d VIANYIONINO
FONVNALNIVIN Ava TIv HdAQ SRIOM FONVNALNIVIA - HIAQ
NOISS3S TvaANTD | wdpo:11 —wdog:L OHA .
WINNIA wdog:,-wd0o:9 dH3
¥0oqg N LI9IHXA wdpo:9 - wdog:y v HA
3$3(T 1S0H SuoN SUoN auoN | N NOISSTS TVYANTD | wdpgy — wrege:|| OHA SYAATING WVTIA IAIM ATIOM 61 AN "LVS
FJONVNALNIVIN Avad TV HdAQ SIOM FONVNALNIVIA - HIAQ
383 1S0H SUON auoN auoN | IS 31eI099(1/d() 19S wdpQ:9-wd(:¢ 2 1Ivd VAYAD VZRIVIA 3d VYANVIININO
HOQIN T dN1ds odxd wdpQ:G — ureg:s Vv HA
353 150H 3UON SUON woN | [N dN1as vi wdpo: | — ureg):g OHA SYIATING WVIIA 3AIM ATIOM
1Nodvadd WOOI@IVOod
o uok LidIHxd a4 11vd
3183 150H sLNoMvIId v od *ANOD TYNOILDIASTINS TVILNAD
£qQoT yspom auoN auoN suoN [ O¥ NOISSAS TVIANID WdOT - NVL v 1TIvd HILYON TVINNTIAvVNO 8007 81 A0S T4
FONVNILNIVIA Avd 1TV HdAd IOM FONVNIINIVIA - HIAQ
JANNIA
2% ONILITN @IVOd NOISSIAINOD
ONILITN Nd00:6-NdOE b v DD ONISNOH SAIdVY ANV IO
1NOvVIdg NOOIAIVOd
LIgIHXd g 711vd
44v1S
ALIEND3S 301104 S.LIN3 3SNOH 03 NOILONNA 3NIL NOOoY ANSAI 31va

800C AN - ® 30V'1d SOA=SQ




d0€-01-d0¢:9 d0¢:01-d9
HO4 1 P WNdS-Nd1 | 2 WNdS-INdOE:CT XIL FONVINIOIIAd WdOT-WdO€:L
asi DIdIVIL T JNI T SYgHSN | AV FONVINIOIId NdO¢:-INdT HdAd iVIN VINWVIN
ONILTIN wdoo:-WV00:8 ONINIVYL T TIATT
S0JUON SUON SUON SUON N isepealg wege:L a-d NOW — SHRIES d IHSYEAVITNIddITS | 1€ AT "SYNHL
ONILITIN wd0Q:#-NV00:8 ONINIVYL T TIATT
S0JUON SUON SUON SUON N sepjeaig wepe:L -4 NOW — SHIYAS d IHSYAAVIT NIddITd
HOd 1 | d0t£-01-d0¢ 9 do0€:01-d9 XIL
asi JHIVIL T INT T SYIHSN | AV FONVINIOIIAd NJOT-INdOE:L HdAQ IVIN VINWVIN 0¢ ATTNC 'dam
ONILIIN wd0Q:#-V00:8 ONINIVYL I TIATT
S0JUON SUON SUON SUON N Isepearg ureoe:L a-d NOW — SIAIS d IHSYAAVIT NIddI'Td
HOJd 1 | d0€01-d0g:9 d0€:01-d9 XIL JONVINIOIIId WdOT-INd0¢g-L 2004
asi OldIVIL T LNG T SYgHSN | AV NI dvO1 WS-V NOATHIAQ iVIN VWAVIA 6C ATN( "SANL
asi NI @vO1 WdT1-Nd9 00d
Jo0dal 0 0 0} v ORI Tdd WdS-NV8 NOATHdIAd IVIN VINWVIN 8T AINM 'NOW
AqQqoTysam LSIIHO NI 09O 40 HOYNHD ¥d1LNIO
AS3 3sOH SUON SUON SUON ey ONILIIN Nd6S: T1-INV00:8 271ve INFNITIMOJNEG ANOTI HLIHM
0 0 0 0] v dRILS I3SNOH Nd9-NdE HdAd IVIN VINWVIN
JONVNILNIVIN AVA 1TV HdAd SRIOM FONVNILNIVIA - HdAd LT AN 'NAS
AqqoT ysiom LSRIHD NI Q09O 40 HOINHD YILNID
353 1S0H SUON SUON SUON 1S ONILITIN Nd6S 11-INV00:8 JT11Ive LNTFNITIMOdNG ANOTO ILIHM
EELAR
ALRKMNJ3S 32110d S.LN3 ISNOH o3 NOILONN JNIL WOQoY 1N3A3 3lvd

800¢ A'INM - @ I0V'1d SOA=A




